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Concor
CITY OF CONCORD ORGANIZATIONAL MISSION STATEMENT
(Adopted January 31, 1996)
Our mission is to join with our community to make Concord a

city of the highest quality. We do this by providing responsive, cost effective
and innovative local government services.

OUR VISION FOR THE FUTURE

We will be a customer based, performance driven, results oriented organization, focused on finding
the answer, solving the problem, and achieving positive outcomes.

We will partner with the Concord community to maximize resources, deliver high quality services,
and be recognized as setting the standard for excellence.

We will be trustworthy guardians of the public’s resources.
We will make Concord a premier business location.

We will collaborate to provide “seamless” services that benefit both our external and internal
customers, streamlining our work processes and removing barriers wherever they arise.

We will accept the challenge of change and be committed to continually enhancing the safety,
environment, quality of life, and economic vitality of our community.

We will constantly look for new and better ways to deliver services. We will seek to be innovative,
take reasonable risks, learn from our mistakes and always strive for excellence.

We will welcome diversity in our community and our work place.

We will conduct our work in an atmosphere of trust, respect and courtesy with open doors and open
communication for our customers and each other.

We will provide ethical, dynamic and effective leadership, establish clear direction and priorities,
and model the mission and values in support of our common Vision.

We will be accountable for our performance and our organization’s success, and be recognized for
our achievements.
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Concor

ORGANIZATIONAL VALUES

L7 Integrity and Trust
We say what we mean and mean what we say. We honor our word and keep our commitments. We
are worthy of the public’s and each other’s trust.

L7 Commitment to Service
We put our customers first. We respond to our internal customers and treat them with the same
courtesy and respect as our external customers. We facilitate, enable, and problem-solve.

Partnerships

We place a high value on building partnerships with members of our community to assure we
understand their needs and continue to deliver the services they desire in the most effective
manner possible.

Innovation and Continuous Improvement

We strive for excellence in the quality and productivity of our work. We create a work environment
in which we look for new solutions and experiment with innovative ways to do things - even if they
don’t always work the first time. We recognize the need to be dynamic in meeting the community’s
changing needs. Each and every employee is given the opportunity to develop and grow.

Performance Accountability

We set measurable performance goals which support the priorities of the City and our individual
work groups. We are given the necessary authority, training and resources to enable us to achieve
these goals. Performance reviews are conducted in a timely and effective manner. Employee
advancement and other incentives are based on performance. We are proud of the professionalism,
competency and dedication that exist throughout the organization.

Long Range Planning

We conduct long range strategic and financial planning to maximize service delivery and build the
economic stability of the City. We practice sound fiscal management to protect the public's
resources.

[J Team Work
We respect each other as individuals, and we take the time and effort to show it. Although certain
positions have more decision-making authority, we treat all members of the organization with the
same consideration for their ideas and concerns. We really listen to, and give each other honest
feedback. We recognize partnerships among work groups and employees as essential to effectively
maximizing resources and delivering high quality services.

Individual Worth and Diversity

We recognize and appreciate the uniqueness of each individual. We value the contribution made
and the synergy created by different experiences and perspectives. We are committed to treating
each and every person within the organization and the larger community with respect and dignity.
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Concor

CORPORATE GOALS
Adopted June 23, 1998

Continue to make Concord a desirable place to live, work, and raise a family.

Be responsive to the needs of Concord citizens, maintain a high level of custom-
er satisfaction, and provide quality public information and outreach.

Promote and improve Concord as a premier location for existing, expanding, and
new businesses.

Ensure a balanced budget for a ten-year planning period with adequate replace-
ment funds for buildings and equipment.

Preserve and enhance the livability of Concord's residential neighborhoods with
opportunities for a broad range of housing options.

Offer an array of recreation, leisure, and cultural events and programs to meet
the needs of citizens of all ages, with an emphasis on the well-being of youth.

Maintain a safe and efficient traffic circulation system.

Have Concord be among the safest cities of comparable size in California and
have citizens feel safe in their homes, places of work, and throughout the City.

Maintain City parks, recreation facilities, streets, buildings, and other infrastruc-
ture to meet high standards of condition and appearance.

Goal 10 Guide Concord's development according to the General Plan and manage physi-
cal resources based on sound environmental principles.
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The City's ability to sustain a vibrant local economy to insure future fiscal strength will continue
to depend on the City's ability to attract the business community and to balance business and
residential needs to the benefit of both. The City's past success in attracting and retaining
successful businesses has not been coincidental. Concord devotes considerable energy to
providing a variety of services and programs to attract new quality businesses as well as help
existing companies to achieve sustained growth. The City's Economic Vitality Strategy
promotes partnerships among businesses, merchants, residents, community groups and City
Departments to anticipate needs and solve problems when they occur. The Strategy guides
City policy to enable Concord to provide efficient and timely local services to maximize a new
company’s success. Concord's award winning One-Stop Permit Center at City Hall provides
expedient permit processing, cuts red tape, reduces construction costs and enables developers
to open establishments earlier and produce revenue sooner. Concord's Business Retention
Program offers a variety of services to assist the retention and expansion of Concord
businesses. The program enhances Concord's relationship with businesses by strengthening
communication, providing education workshops and assisting with site selection and permit
facilitation.

While the projected success in the development area eventually points to a positive outlook,
the City is facing the same uncertainties as other agencies in the State, including the rise in
cost for salaries and benefits including retirement, health insurance, workers compensation, as
well as the continuing State budget crisis. For over 20 years, the State legislature has been
taking local tax dollars that local governments use to provide vital services such as law
enforcement, vital infrastructure, parks and libraries. The State has taken more than $40 billion
from cities, counties and special districts in the last 15 years. The State justified these
diversions as "temporary" that would lapse when the economy improved. However, as the
economy improved, the State continued to increase spending and the revenues have not been
returned to local agencies.

Although the passage of Proposition 1A in 2004 restored some predictability to our budget, it
was not a guarantee that cities will not experience cash flow impacts due to future loans to the
State. The State suspended Proposition 1A with regard to Redevelopment Agencies in Fiscal
Year 2010-11, taking approximately $1.2 million from the Redevelopment Agency.

In the November 2010 election, the voters of California overwhelming passed Proposition 22
which further protected local revenues, both of the City and of the Redevelopment Agency
(RDA). Unfortunately, the State continued to face significant structural budget shortfalls and
virtually ignored the wishes of the population and took local funds to deal with their shortfall in
FY 2011-12. While Governor Brown has made significant strides in reducing the State budget
deficit, the State continues to rely on a number of one-time solutions and gimmicks rather than
focusing on aligning ongoing revenue with ongoing program expenditures to eliminate the
structural deficit.

On June 28, 2011, the State of Califomia adopted the Redevelopment Dissolution Act (ABx1
26 and ABx1 27) as part of the FY 2011-12 State Budget. In December 2012, the California
Supreme Court upheld ABx1 26 and struck down ABx1 27, resulting in the dissolution of the
RDA on February 1, 2012 and the formation of a Successor Agency and Housing Successor
Agency to the former RDA to wind down the affairs of the RDA. The approved activities to
wind down RDA affairs include paying off existing obligations, disposing of properties, and
liquidation of reserves, which were accumulated over many years to forward the former RDA'’s
goals and objectives including the preservation and creation of low and moderate housing
within the City of Concord. The process is overseen by a seven member oversight board









PRINCIPAL OFFICERS (June 30, 2012)
Elected Officials

Thomas J. Wentling
City Treasurer

Left to right: William Shinn (Vice Mayor), Ron Leone (Mayor), Laura M. Hoffmeister (Council Member),
Tim Grayson (Council Member) and Dan Helix (Council Member)

Executive Team

Valerie Barone Kay Winer
Interim City Manager Interim Assistant City
Manager
Mark Coon Victoria Walker Michael Wright Margaret Lefebvre
Interim City Attorney Director of Community & Concord Reuse Director of Finance
Economic Development Project Director
Kathy Ito Ron Puccinelli Joan Carrico Guy Swanger Steve Voorhies
Director of Director of Information Director of Parks & Chief of Police Interim Director of Public
Human Resources Technology Recreation Works

xviii



*SUOISSIWIWOD U SPJeoq AIOSIAPE U0 9AISS 0} ANUNWWOD SU} WOJj SUSZ

payienb sjuiodde j1ouno) AN syl ‘sedines welboid 1no Aued o) seakojdwa saay pue speay juswuedap pue 3D AND ays sjulodde
1abeuey AuD syl ‘Asuwiony A1 ay pue ssbeuepy AiD sy sjulodde [19unod 8yl paldsle ale 1ainseal] AlD syl pue SISqISI [19Unod aAl4 JuawuIdsAob Jo wioy sabeuey ADy/|1ounod AItD e sey pioduo) Jo AiD ayL

preog 1ybis1an0
UoISSILWOD Aouaby 10ss200NS
aoeds uado
® UOEDINDY ‘SHied uoIssIWwoD
preog dnoin Buiuue|d
uoIssSIwwo) £1UN03S YIOMION swaIney KI0SIApY [ea1Uy29 |
S92IAI8S ANUNWWoD pleog
SuoIEIIUNWWOD
SERIILED) wmm._m__.\<<o_cmm pieog suonesadQ oyjel L SSPILLLOD MR Y
Wbisian0 O ainsesy Buiby uo uoissiwwod § ’ |Jouuosiad N i Aiosinpy Aunwwod
S9IAISS |Ie|\ 82I0A
s[eaddy jo preog
$921M8S auoydsja L Buideams 19a11S
S92INBS S92IAIBS }IoMIBN
ELIVEIS Awes 2 yinoA sbunyey ® subis uoneuodsuel
Bunund (ONd) 30 ‘ouBUBIUIR 199N1S
Sluang % suods Juswabeuepy 108loid uopesuadwo) Juswabeuey asea Kouaby lossadons
Juawabeuey Anoas aseg Slaxiom » Alojes asudiaug lames Juswdojanapay
asiyouel SIS UOIeaIdaY ereq % uonesyddy uonesauan S92INIBS
[e10ads % J01uas saseg uonoa|es anuanay S9INIBS SHled Kouablawz 193)unjop Buiuuelq
Juawabeue eleq % suoneolddy % JUBWIINIODY
Splooay pUENEENG)VE asudiajug Juswabeuepy S10ISIQ JUBWISSSSY sprepuels Buluue|d asnay suonoadsu|
/BuiBew] Juawnsoqg suonesado ® juswdojanag sleuale |\ Bunybi » adeospue] [euoissajoid euay Ajwe4-ninN
juawabeue uolined Buiurel | ABojouyos | 7 Bulures | % Buiseyaind yoeanno
suone|ay Aunoas apis-jualD feuoneziuefio [eroway niyel 29110d J0 JaIyD algnd Buasuibug
Aunwwod asudisiug SaNS gaM Bunioday » ayl Jo YO
as1n0D J|09 ddns dopisaq djeH suonepy sisAfeuy [eloueuly juswabeuel 1994 Aujgeureisns Juswdojanaa
uoddns 9safojdwg S9OINIBS leosi4 olWou093
J1oUN0D AlD sweibolid Buissaippy 19918 sjuswasingsia S92IAIBS [BIpoISND B SAeASIUILPY
7 suonesado Aujioey slake eleg s19 uonesuadwo)d aoueuauie ANjioeq pue suonebisanul Aqiseaq Buipjing
sonAjeuy [enredsoa ® UoIeINISSE|D finseal) Ao leloueuly
EELIVELS $92IM8S AUnwiwod juswabeue pue sfeubBis ouyyel suonesadQ [eussju| sweibold
aAIENSIUIPY diysisumo [9o1ed uonensiuIwpy Buuuelq 9 10LISIJ 1UBWISSaSSY salbarens BuisnoH s|qepioyy
PHBID AN pioouo)d dwed salrepunog A1 sjyeuag [eroueul ® 196png WbIpeans apmAiD suonesado plal4 aouekanuod
9240 juswdojanaq
19beuen A1D uolealoay ABojouyoa $92I1N0Say 108014 uonels
aoueul4 SYIOM 211gnd 991104 o|Wwou093
2yl Jo 92140 B syled uolnewloju| uewnH suodeapp AUnwWwo
[eAeN pJoouo)d KR o
[

Jabeuey A11D 1UeISISSY

S)0RJUOD ‘SUONN|OSaY ‘S8dueUIPIO
uonNIasoId Uoie|oIA apoD [edidiuniy
asuayaq@ Anjgen
S9aNIWWIOYD 7 SUOISSIWIWOYD ‘[19Un0D AN 0} 1ouno) [eba
Buissado.d swre|D

Asuiony AND

labeuep AQ11D

SJuBWISaAU|
sysodag
92IAI8S puog
S]OL1SIQ JUBWSSASSY

Jainseal] A1)

SIBqWIBA [19Un0) INo4 pue loAe
Aouaby 10ss820ng/|1ouno)d AlID

SUOISSILILLOD 10 SIBNIWOD
‘spieog Alosinpy aanuioddy

pioouod Jo A11D ayi Jo ajdoad ayl

S[eIo pas|3




Certificate of

Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

City of Concord
California

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2011

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

President

Gy # -

Executive Director

















































This Page Left Intentionally Blank



CiTY OF CONCORD JUNE 30, 2012

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AND STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities summarize the entire City's financial
activities and financial position. They are prepared on the same basis as is used by most businesses,
which means they include all the City’'s assets and all its liabilities, as well as all its revenues and
expenses. This is known as the full accrual basis—the effect of all the City’s transactions is taken into
account, regardless of whether or when cash changes hands, but all material internal transactions
between City funds have been eliminated.

The Statement of Net Assets reports the difference between the City's total assets and the City's total
liabilities, including all the City's capital assets and all its long-term debt. The Statement of Net Assets
summarizes the financial position of all the City’s Governmental Activities in a single column, and the
financial position of all the City's Business-Type Activities in a single column; these columns are
followed by a Total column that presents the financial position of the entire City.

The City's Governmental Activities include the activities of its General Fund, along with all its Special
Revenue, Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds. Since the City’s Internal Service Funds service
these Funds, their activities are consolidated with Governmental Activities, after eliminating inter-fund
transactions and balances. The City’s Business-Type Activities include all its Enterprise Fund activities.

The Statement of Activities reports increases and decreases in the City’s net assets. It is also prepared
on the full accrual basis, which means it includes all the City's revenues and all its expenses, regardless
of when cash changes hands. This differs from the “modified accrual’ basis used in the Fund financial
statements, which reflect only current assets, current liabilities, available revenues and measurable
expenditures.

The Statement of Activities presents the City's expenses first, listed by program, and follows these with
the expenses of its Business-Type Activities. Program revenues—that is, revenues which are
generated directly by these programs—are then deducted from program expenses to arrive at the net
expense of each governmental and business-type program. The City’s general revenues are then listed
in the Governmental Activities or Business-type Activities column, as appropriate, and the Change in
Net Assets is computed and reconciled with the Statement of Net Assets.

Both these Statements include the financial activities of the City and the former City of Concord
Redevelopment Agency, City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority, Concord Sanitary Sewer
Services, Inc., and the City of Concord Retirement System, which are legally separate but are
component units of the City because they are controlled by the City, which are financially accountable
for the component units’ activities.
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ASSETS

Cash and Investments (Note 3)
Cash with Fiscal Agents (Note 3)

Receivables (Net of Allowances for Uncollectibles):

Accounts
Due from Other Governments
Interest
Loans and Notes, Net of Reserves (Note 5)
Employee Computer Loans (Note 6)
Inventories
Prepaid ltems and Other Assets
Internal Balances (Note 4)
Investment in Joint Venture (Note 16)
Net OPEB Asset (Note 13)
Capital Assets (Note 7):
Land and Construction In Progress

Depreciable Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts, Deposits and Contracts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Interest Payable
Refundable Deposits
Unearned Revenue
Net Pension Obligation (Note 10):
Due in More Than One Year
Compensated Absences (Note 1)
Due in One Year
Due in More Than One Year
Claims Payable (Note 15):
Due in One Year
Due in More Than One Year
Long-Term Debt (Note 8):
Due in One Year
Due in More Than One Year

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS (Note 9)

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:

Capital Projects

Debt Service

Community Development Projects

Total Restricted Net Assets
Unrestricted Net Assets

Total Net Assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements

CITY OF CONCORD
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

$60,105,899 $31,826,399 $91,932,298
4,476,617 252,676 4,729.293
3,435,506 52,308 3,487,814
10,753,375 10,753,375
261,607 3,313 264,920
34,421,220 34,421,220
102 102
75,944 75,944
97,874 40,912 138,786

(2,764,278) 2,764,278
1,919,376 1,919,376
7,755,519 7,755,519
25,617,611 1,718,382 27,335,993
629,996,491 76,187,957 706,184,448
776,152,863 112,846,225 888,999,088
6,661,739 13,851,782 20,513,521
2,389,280 24,019 2,413,299
322,870 394,185 717,055
4,424 920 4,424 920
652,382 652,382
4,445,843 4,445,843
2,379,647 31,571 2,411,218
1,572,060 73,879 1,645,939
2,491,329 2,491,329
6,530,715 6,530,715
1,727,002 940,000 2,667,002
14,396,684 21,130,000 35,526,684
47,994,471 36,445 436 84,439,907
643,967,033 56,121,427 700,088,460
21,296,898 21,296,898
4,685,903 4,685,903
38,694,810 38,694,810
64,677,611 64,677,611
19,513,748 20,279,362 39,793,110
$728,158,392 $76,400,789 $804,559,181
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CITY OF CONCORD
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Program Revenues Changes in Net Assets
Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Goevernmental Business-Type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Centributions Activities Activities Total
Governmental Activities:
General Government $13,101,551 $1,553,733 ($11,547,818) ($11,547,818)
Public Safety 43,363,091 1,635,124 $327 926 (41,400,041) (41,400,041)
Public Works 32,023,754 8,528,881 4,940,626 $5,790,217 (12,764,030) (12,764,030)
Community and Economic Development 10,592,117 548,425 1,159,478 (8,884,214) (8,884,214)
Parks & Recreation Services 6,979,013 3,019,879 1,498,806 796,608 (1,663,720) (1,663,720)
Interest on Long-Term Debt 3,334,049 (3,334,049) (3,334,049)
Total Governmental Activities 109,393,575 15,286,042 7,926,836 6,586,825 (79,593,872) (79,593,872)

Business-Type Activities:

Sewer 23,196,668 19,359,526 ($3,837,142) (3,837,142)
Golf Course 1,313,458 1,382,491 69,033 69,033
Total Business-Type Activities 24,510,126 20,742,017 (3,768,109) (3,768,109)
Total $133,903,701 $36,028,069 $7,926,836 $6,586,825 (79,593,872) (3,768,109) (83,361,981)
General Revenues:
Taxes
Property Taxes 19,353,337 19,353,337
Sales Taxes 33,855,151 33,855,151
Motor Vehicle In Lieu, Unrestricted 8,117,461 8,117,461
Transient Occupancy Taxes 1,478,874 1,478,874
Business License Taxes 3,377,278 3,377,278
Other Taxes 4,784,146 4,784,146
Investment Eamings 623,823 286,744 910,567
Miscellaneous Revenues 37,500 37,500
Extraordinary ltem (Note 18)
Assets transferred to/liabilities assumed
by Successor Agency 20,298,845 20,298,845
Total General Revenues 91,888,915 324,244 92,213,159
Change in Net Assets 12,295,043 (3,443,865) 8,851,178
Net Assets - Beginning 715,863,349 79,844,654 795,708,003
Net Assets - Ending $728,158,392 $76,400,789 $804,559,181

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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CiTy oF CONCORD JUNE 30, 2012

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Major funds are defined generally as having significant activities or balances in the current year.

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The funds described below were determined to be Major Funds by the City in fiscal 2012. Individual
non-major funds may be found in the Supplemental section.

General Fund — The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The major revenue
sources for this Fund are property taxes, sales taxes, unrestricted revenues from the State, charges
for services, and interest income. Expenditures are made for public safety, most street work and other
services not required to be accounted for in another fund.

Concord Housing — The Concord Housing Fund accounts for the activities related to the assets
assumed by the City of Concord as the Housing Successor to the housing activities of the former
Redevelopment Agency of the City of Concord.

Redevelopment Agency — The Redevelopment Agency Fund accounts for all activities of the former
Agency, including 1) tax increment allocations set aside for the purpose of increasing or improving
housing for low-income residents; 2) the accumulation of property taxes for payment of interest and
principal on the Redevelopment Agency tax allocation bonds issued in 1988, 1993, and 2004; and 3)
capital projects connected with downtown redevelopment funded by property tax increment revenues.
As discussed in Note 18, the Redevelopment Agency was dissolved, effective February 1, 2012, and
the balances of this fund were transferred to the Successor Agency.

General Projects Fund - This fund accounts for all general capital improvement projects not funded
from proprietary funds.

21
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JUNE 30,2012

ASSETS:
Cash and Investments (Note 3)
Cash with Fiscal Agents (Note 3)
Receivables (Net of Allowances for Uncollectibles):
Accounts
Due from Other Governments
Interest
Due from Other Funds (Note 4)
Loans and Notes (Note 5)
Ernployee Computer Loans (Note 6)
Inventories
Prepaid ltems and Other Assets
Advances to Other Funds (Note 4)
Investment in Partnership (Note 16)

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Accounts, Deposits and Contracts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Due to Other Funds (Note 4)
Refundable Deposits
Deferred Revenue
Advances from Other Funds (Note 4)

Total Liabilities

FUND BALANCES:

Fund Balances: (Note 9)
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

CITY OF CONCORD
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2012
Former Other Total

Concord Redevelopment General Governmental Govemmental

General Housing Agency Projects Funds Funds
$19,508,980 $203,301 319,524,125 $39,234,406
$3,660,899 815,718 4,476,617
2,231,513 180,530 971,259 3,383,302
5,795,648 3,020,401 1,937,326 10,753,375
256,964 256,964
2,032,291 2,032,291
31,723,400 2,697,820 34,421,220
102 102
75,944 75,944
1,862,573 3,000,000 397,500 5,260,073
1,919,376 1,919,376
$31,762,015 $36,846,077 $6,861,830 $26,343,748 $101,813,670
$3,627,555 $1,098 $2,768,365 $221,646 $6,618,664
2,097,204 13,716 447,182 2,558,192
244268 166,936 411,204
4,424,920 4,424,920
435,208 5,945,674 4,717,649 4,496,029 15,594,560
8,550,000 1,529,973 10,079,973
19,134,977 5,946,772 7,743,998 5,861,766 39,687,513
2,188,620 2,188,620
30,899,305 18,660,039 49,559,344
7,571,120 976,992 8,548,112
2,867,298 (882,168) (155,049) 1,830,081
12,627,038 30,899,305 (882,168) 19,481,982 62,126,157
331,762,015 $36,846,077 $6,861,830 $26,343,748 $101,813,670

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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City OF CONCORD

JUNE 30,2012

CITY OF CONCORD
Reconciliation of the
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - BALANCE SHEET
with the
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012

TOTAL FUND BALANCES -- TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of

Net Assets are different from those reported in the Governmental Funds above because of the following:

CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets used in Governmental Activities are not current assets or financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the Governmental Funds.

ALLOCATION OF INTERNAL SERVICE FUND NET ASSETS
Internal Service Funds are not Governmental Funds. However, they are used by management to
charge the costs of certain activities, such as insurance and central services and maintenance,
to individual Govermmental Funds.
The net current assets and liabilities of the Internal Service Funds are therefore included in
Governmental Activities following line items in the Statement of Net Assets.
Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable
Interest Receivable
Prepaid ltems
Advance to Other Funds
Net OPEB Asset
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Claims Payable

ACCRUAL OF NON-CURRENT REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Revenues which are deferred on the Fund Balance Sheets because they are not available
currently are taken into revenue in the Statement of Activities.

LONG-TERM ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The assets and liabilities below are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are
not reported in the Funds:
Long-Term Debt
Interest Payable
Non-Current Portion of Accrued Liabilities

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes to financial statements

$62,126,157

655,614,102

20,871,493
52,204
4,643
97,874
2,000,000
7,755,519
(43,075)
(1,565,465)
(9,022,044)

15,178,492

(16,123,686)
(322,870)
(8,464,952)

$728,158,392
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JUNE 30, 2012

REVENUES
Taxes
Property
Less Tax Increment Rebate
In Lieu Property Tax - VLF
Sales
Measure Q
Sales Tax In Lieu
Transient Occupancy
Franchises
Business License
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines, Forfeitures and Penalties
Parks and Recreation
Use of Money and Property
Special Assessment Collections
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works

Community and Economic Development

Parks & Recreation Services
Capitat Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Bond Issuance Costs

Total Expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers In (Note 4)
Transfers (Out) (Note 4)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES BEFORE

EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS (Note 18)
Assets transferred to the Housing Successor/
Assets transferred to/liabilities assumed

by the Successor Agency

Total Extraordinary tems

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) AT END OF YEAR

CITY OF CONCORD

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Former Other Total
Concord Redevelopment General Governmental Governmenta!
General Housing Agency Projects Funds Funds

$11,404,500 $8,495,204 $3,598,11 $23,497,835
(168,339) (168,339)

8,055,193 8,055,193
18,188,828 18,168,828
9,970,698 9,970,698
5,695,625 5,695,625
1,478,874 1,478,874
4,779,135 4,779,135
3,377,278 3,377,278
1,282,817 82,369 1,365,186
361,631 $2,825,423 7,948,428 11,135,482
4,858,806 6,876 4,865,682
821,727 101,018 922,745
2,668,759 2,668,758
400,921 $27,176 (1,991) 4,480 041,372 1,371,958
11,621 11,621

883,589 189,701 1.561 13,603 87,948 1,176,402
74,228,381 216,877 8,326,435 2,844 524 12,676,745 98,392,962
12,325,452 82,069 12,407,521
41,916,877 256,128 32,229 42,205,234
5777184 4,165,174 9,942,358
4,633,243 26,070 1,949,634 2,339,199 1,053,288 10,001,434
4,800,248 861,030 779,220 6,440,498
825,954 8,117,064 2,811,988 11,755,006

3,835,000 1,592,190 5,427,190

52,538 2,517,871 1,303,926 3,874,335
1,083 1,063

69,505,542 26,070 9,128,459 11,655,490 11,738,078 102,054,638
4,722,839 190,807 (802,024) (8,710,968) 937,667 (3,661,677)
2,878,730 11,416,332 374,797 1,558,121 16,227,980
(12,014,942) (1,897,673) (7437) (613,138) (14,533,150)
(9,136,212) 9,518,659 367,380 944,983 1,694,790
(4413,373) 190,807 8,716,635 (8,343,606) 1,882,650 (1,966,887)
30,708,498 (53,147.316) (899,428) (23,338,246)

30,708,498 (53,147,316) (899,428) (23,338,246)

(4,413,373) 30,899,305 (44,430,681) (8,343,606) 983,222 (25,305,133)
17,040,411 44,430,681 7,461,438 18,498,760 87,431,290
$12,627,038 $30,899,305 ($8582,168) $19,481,982 $62,126,157

See accompanying notes to financial staterments
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JUNE 30, 2012

CITY OF CONCORD
Reconciliation of the
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
with the
STATEMENT OF ACTIMITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

The schedule below reconciles the Net Changes in Fund Balances reported on the Governmental Funds Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, which measures only changes in current assets and current
liabilities on the modified accrual basis, with the Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities reported in the
Statement of Activities, which is prepared on the full accrual basis.

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS ($25,305,133)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
are different because of the following:

CAPITAL ASSETS TRANSACTIONS

Governmental Funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is capitalized and allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense,
The capital outlay and other expenditures are therefore added back to fund balance 10,893,368
Retirements of capital assets are deducted from fund balance (672,599)
Depreciation expense is deducted from the fund balance
(Depreciation expense is net of intemal service fund depreciation of $3,521,993
which has already been allocated to serviced funds.) (20,831,021)
Capital assets transferred to the Successor Agency (18,632,884)

LONG TERM DEBT PROCEEDS AND PAYMENTS

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to Governmental Funds, but
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets.
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the Governmental Funds, but
in the Statement of Net Assets the repayment reduces long-term liabilities.

Repayment of debt principal is added back to fund balance 5,427,190
Amortization of loss on refunding is deducted from fund balance (345,778)
Interest accrued to principal is deducted from fund balance (35,610)
Long-term debt assumed by the Successor Agency 62,140,842

ACCRUAIL OF NON-CURRENT ITEMS

The amounts below included in the Statement of Activities do not provide or (require) the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as revenue or expenditures in
Governmental Funds (net change):

Long-Term Compensated Absences and pension costs (1,041,946)
Loans receivable assumed by the Successor Agency (286,350)
Lease receivable assumed by the City

Deferred Revenue 2,884,787
Interest Payable 922,737
Interest payable assumed by the Successor Agency 415,483

ALLOCATION OF INTERNAL SERVICE FUND ACTMITY

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities,
such as equipment acquisition, maintenance, and insurance to individual funds.
The portion of the net revenue (expense) of these Internal Service Funds arising out
of their transactions with Governmental Funds is reported with governmental activities,
because they service those activities.
Change in Net Assets - All Internal Service Funds, less contributions from
Governmental Funds (3,238,043)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $12,295,043

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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JUNE 30,2012

CITY OF CONCORD

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

REVENUES:
Taxes
Property
In Lieu Property Tax VLF
Sales
Measure Q
Sales Tax In Lieu
Transient Occupancy
Franchises
Business License
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines, Forfeitures and Penalties
Parks and Recreation
Use of Money and Property
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government:

Council

Manager

Attorney

Human Resources

Finance

Total General Government

Public Safety
Public Works
Community and Economic Development
Parks & Recreation Services
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

EXCESS (PEFICIENCY) OF REYENUES OYER
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers (Out)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
$11,422,759 $11,422,759 $11,404,500 ($18,259)
8,564,000 8,564,000 8,055,193 (508,807)
17,030,000 17,030,000 18,188,828 1,158,828
8,080,000 8,080,000 9,970,698 1,890,698
6,250,000 6,250,000 5,695,625 (554,375)
1,500,000 1,500,000 1,478,874 (21,126)
4,805,000 4,805,000 4,779,135 (25,865)
3,098,000 3,098,000 3,377,278 279,278
1,291,005 1,291,005 1,282,817 (8,188)
650,500 650,500 361,631 (288,869)
4,743,188 4,743,188 4,858,806 115,618
1,037,238 1,037,238 821,727 (215,511)
2,670,794 2,670,794 2,668,759 (2,035)
649,080 649,080 400,921 (248,159)
772,619 400,769 883,589 482,820
72,564,183 72,192,333 74,228,381 2,036,048
323,345 323,345 333,473 (10,128)
2,223,634 2,254,196 2,192,879 61,317
1,113,585 1,345,273 974,964 370,309
1,260,352 1,375,164 1,171,571 203,593
8,125,543 8,135,008 7,652,565 482,441
13,046 459 13,432,984 12,325,452 1,107,532
42,527,018 42,615,181 41,916,877 698,304
5,925,776 6,031,094 5,777,184 253,910
4,730,374 4,738,492 4,633,243 105,249
5,025,377 5,083,516 4,800,248 283,268
52,538 (52,538)
71,255,004 71,901,267 69,505,542 2,395,725
1,309,179 291,066 4,722,839 4431,773
4,116,103 3,803,833 2,878,730 (925,103)
(1,036,277) (2,307,273) (12,014,942) (9,707,669)
3,079,826 1,496 560 (9,136,212) (10,632,772)
$4,389,005 $1,787,626 (4,413,373) ($6,200,999)
17,040,411
$12,627,038

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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JUNE 30, 2012

CITY OF CONCORD
CONCORD HOUSING FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES:
Use of Money and Property $36,458 $36,458 $27,176 (9,282)
Other 189,701 189,701
Total Revenues 36,458 36,458 216,877 180,419
EXPENDITURES:
Current
Community and Economic Development 23,463 23,463 26,070 (2,607)
Total Expenditures 23,463 23,463 26,070 (2,607)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES 12,995 12,995 190,807 177,812
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS (Note 18)

Assets transferred to the Housing Successor 30,708,498 30,708,498
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $12,995 $12,995 30,899,305 $30,886,310
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $30,899,305

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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CiTy oF CONCORD JUNE 30, 2012

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Proprietary funds account for City operations financed and operated in a manner similar to a private
business enterprise. The intent of the City is that the cost of providing goods and services be financed
primarily through user charges.

The concept of major funds extends to Proprietary Funds. GASB 34 does not provide for the disclosure
of budget vs. actual comparisons regarding proprietary funds. The City reports all Enterprise Funds as
major funds:

Sewer Fund. To account for activities associated with sewage transmission and treatment.

Golf Course Fund. To account for activities associated with the development, operation and
maintenance of the Diablo Creek Golf Course.
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CITy OF CONCORD

JUNE 30, 2012

CITY OF CONCORD
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities -
Internal Service
Sewer Golf Course Totals Funds
ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and investments (Note 3) $31,587,972 $238,427 $31,826,399 $20,871,493
Cash with Fiscal Agents (Note 3) 56 252,620 252,676
Accounts Receivable 5,992 46,316 52,308 52,204
Interest Receivable 3,313 3,313 4643
Prepaid ltems 8,500 8,500 97,874
Total Current Assets 31,697,333 545,863 32,143,196 21,026,214
Non-Current Assets:
Advances to Other Funds (Note 4) 3,550,000 3,550,000 2,000,000
Debt Issue Costs (Net of Amortization) 32,412 32,412
Net OPEB Asset (Note 13) 7,755,519
Capital Assets (Note 7):
Land 334,839 60,343 395,182
Construction In Progress 1,323,200 1,323,200 1,164,208
Buildings and Improvements 2,824 944 5,876,042 8,700,986 42,184,419
Machinery and Equipment 112,189 136,177 248,366 20,105,986
Sewer Collection System 209,485,479 209,485,479
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (139,212,772) (3,034,102) (142,246,874) (35,693,817)
Net Capital Assets 74,867,879 3,038,460 77,906,339 27,760,796
Total Non-Current Assets 78,417,879 3,070,872 81,488,751 37,516,315
Total Assets 110,015,212 3,616,735 113,631,947 58,542 529
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities (Payable from Current Assets):
Accounts and Contracts Payable 13,847,169 4,613 13,861,782
Accrued Liabilities 24,019 24,019 67,402
Due To Other Funds (Note 4) 55,622 55,622 1,665,465
Compensated Absences Payable (Note 1) 31,571 31,571 129,922
Bond Interest Payable 367,145 27,040 394,185 30,853
Capital Lease Payable (Note 8) 549,983
Certificates of Participation (Note 8) 780,000 160,000 940,000
Claims Payable (Note 15) 2,491,329
Total Current Liabilities 15,049,904 247,275 15,297,179 4,834,954
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated Absences Payable (Note 1) 73,879 73,879 157,687
Advance from Other Funds (Note 4) 730,100 730,100
Capital L ease Payable (Note 8) 1,246,225
Certificates of Participation (Note 8} 19,970,000 1,160,000 21,130,000
Claims Payable (Note 15) 6,530,715
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 20,043,879 1,890,100 21,933,979 7,934,627
Total Liabilities 35,093,783 2,137,375 37,231,158 12,769,581
NET ASSETS (Note 9):
Invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt 54,117,935 2,003,492 56,121,427 25,964,588
Unrestricted 20,803,494 (524,132) 20,279,362 19,765,285
Total Net Assets Business-Type Activities $74,921,429 $1,479,360 $76,400,789 $45,729,873

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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JUNE 30, 2012

CITY OF CONCORD
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities -
Internal Service
Sewer Golf Course Totals Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Service Fees $19,359,526 $19,359,526
Charges for Services $17,117,439
Golf Course Fees and Charges $1,353,990 1,353,990
Other 28,501 28,501 79,726
Total Operating Revenues 19,359,526 1,382,491 20,742,017 17,197,165
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating and Maintenance 18,021,090 1,085,301 19,106,391 12,641,884
Cost of Sales and Services 1,646,037
Depreciation and Amortization 4,270,380 161,395 4,431,775 3,434,772
Claims and Judgments 1,356,648
Total Operating Expenses 22,291,470 1,246,696 23,538,166 19,079,341
Operating Income (Loss) (2,931,944) 135,795 (2,796,149) (1,882,176)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment Income 285,768 976 286,744 186,258
Interest Expense (905,198) (66,762) (971,960) (109,204)
Gain (Loss) from Disposition of Capital Assets 76,037
Other 37,500 37,500
Net Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (619,430) (28,286) (647,716) 153,091
Income (Loss) Before Contributions and
Transfers (3,551,374) 107,509 (3,443,865) (1,729,085)
Contributions 185,832
Transfer In (Note 4) 100,000
Transfer Out (Note 4) (1,794,790)
Changes in Net Assets Before
Extraordinary ltems (3,551,374) 107,509 (3,443,865) (3,238,043)
EXTRACRDINARY ITEM (Note 18)
Assets transferred to/liabilities assumed
by the Successor Agency (18,148,249)
Total Extraordinary ltem (18,148,249)
Changes in Net Assets (3,551,374) 107,509 (3,443,865) (21,386,292)
Total Net Assets - Beginning 78,472,803 1,371,851 79,844,654 67,116,165
Total Net Assets - Ending $74,921,429 $1,479,360 $76,400,789 $45,729,873

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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JUNE 30, 2012

CITY OF CONCORD
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities -
Internal Service
Sewer Golf Course Totals Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers $19,358,201 $1,421,133 $20,779,334 $17,155,640
Payments to Suppliers (16,124,071) (1,022,023) (17,146,094) (8,823,507)
Payments to Employees (1,121,171} (58,743) (1,179,914) (3,539,391)
Claims paid (2,324,623)
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities 2,112,959 340,367 2,453,326 2,468,119
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTMTIES
Borrowings of Advances From/To Other Funds 177,972 24,437 202,409 227,001
Transfers In 100,000
Transfers (Out) (1,794,790)
Cash Flows from (Used for) Non-Capital Financing Activities 177,972 24,437 202,409 (1,467,789)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (1,169,993) (5,400) (1,175,393) (1,959,062)
Principal Paid on Debt, Bond Maturities (750,000) (55,000) (805,000) (239,595)
Interest and Fiscal Charges Paid (916,382) (66,681) (983,063) (83,536)
Cash Flows from (Used for) Capital and Related
Financing Activities (2,836,375) (127,081) (2,963,456) (2,282,193)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIMTIES
Interest Received 286,864 976 287,840 188,344
Cash Flows from Investing Activities 286,864 976 287,840 188,344
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (258,580) 238,699 (19,881) (1,093,519)
Cash and Investments at Beginning of Period 31,846,608 252,348 32,098,956 21,965,012
Cash and Investments at End of Period $31,588,028 3491,047 $32,079,075 $20,871,493
NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS:
Contributions and Transfers of Capital Assets, Net ($17,962,417)
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss) ($2,931,944) $135,795 ($2,796,149) ($1,882,1786)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities:
Other Non-Operating Revenue 37,500 37,500
Depreciation and Amortization 4,270,380 161,395 4,431,775 3,434,772
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Receivables, Net (1,325) 1,142 (183) (41,525)
Prepaid Expenses 73,879
Net OPEB Asset 842,484
Accounts Payable 780,830 1,595 782,425 43,075
Accrued Liabilities (4,982) 2,940 (2,042) (70,509)
Self Insurance Claims Payable 68,119
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities $2,112,959 $340,367 $2,453,326 $2,468,119

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary Funds — Trust funds are used to account for assets held by the City as a trustee agent for
individuals, private organizations, and other governments. The financial activities of these funds are
excluded from the City-wide financial statement, but are presented in separate Fiduciary Fund financial
statements.
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CITY OF CONCORD
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012

City of Concord Successor
Retirement Agency
System Private
Pension Purpose
Trust Trust Fund
ASSETS:
Cash and Investments (Note 3)
Money Market Funds $832,627
Corporate Debt Instruments 8,998,183
California Local Agency Investment Fund 1,320,702
Federal Agencies 3,199,989
Municipal Bonds 863,054
Pooled Investments 3,600,904 $13,589,471
U.S. Treasury Notes 1,824,674
Common Stock 11,573,860
Mutual Funds 7,604,350
Cash with Fiscal Agents (Note 3) 9,438,778
Total Cash and Investments 39,818,343 23,028,249
Receivables (Net of Allowances for Uncollectibles):
Interest 1,173 9,823
Notes and Loans Receivable (Note 18) 715,570
Land Held for Redevelopment 11,416,332
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated (Note 18) 485,155
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated (net) (Note 18) 18,222,111
Total Assets 39,819,516 53,877,240
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable 47,723
Interest Payable 1,375,433
Long-Term Debt (Note 18):
Due in One Year 4,885,000
Due in More Than One Year 66,336,779
Total Liabilities 72,644,935

(18,767,695)

NET ASSETS:
Held for Private Purposes
Employee Retirement System 39,819,516
Total Net Assets $39,819,516

($18,767,695)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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CITY OF CONCORD
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

City of Concord Successor
Retirement Agency
System Private
Pension Purpose
Trust Trust Fund
ADDITIONS
Contributions $863,610
Property Taxes, Net of Pass Through Payments $3,351,523
Investment Income 1,989,231 37,629
Less Management Expenses (202,856)
Net Investment Income 1,786,375 37,629
Total Additions 2,649,985 3,389,152
DEDUCTIONS
Retirement and Other Benefits 5,529,921
Planning and Economic Development 306,057
Depreciation 385,339
Interest expense 1,166,606
Total Deductions 5,529,921 1,858,002
NET CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS (2,879,936) 1,531,150
EXTRAORDINARY ITEM (Note 18)
Assets Transferred to/Liabilities Assumed
by the Successor Agency (20,298,845)
NET CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (2,879,936) (18,767,695)
NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Beginning of Year 42 699,452
End of Year $39,819,516 ($18,767,695)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Concord was incorporated in 1905 and operates under the Council-Manager form of
government. The City provides the following services: public safety (police services and building
inspection), highways and streets, sewer collection, recreation services, public improvements, planning
and zoning, redevelopment and general administration services.

The financial statements and accounting policies of the City of Concord conform with generally
accepted accounting principles applicable to governments. The Governmental Accounting Standard
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The following is a summary of the more significant policies:

Reporting Entity

The accompanying basic financial statements present the financial activity of the City, which is the
primary government presented, along with the financial activities of its component units, which are entities
for which the City is financially accountable. Although they are separate legal entities, blended
component units are in substance part of the City’s operations and are reported as an integral part of the
City's financial statements.

The City’s component units which are described below are all blended.

The Redevelopment Agency of the City of Concord was formed in March 1973 for the purpose of
renovating designated areas within the City limits. The City Council sits as the Governing Board of the
Agency, which is a component unit of the City and is accounted for in the fund established by the City.
The Agency adopted the Redevelopment Plan in November 1974. The Plan established the Central
Concord Redevelopment Project, which includes approximately 670 acres in the City’s Central
Business District. Subsequent annexations have increased the Redevelopment Project Areas to 1,072
acres. Most recently, during FY 2010-2011, the Concord Community Reuse Redevelopment Project
was added. This area includes all land within the boundaries of the inland portion of the former
Concord Naval Weapons Station base area and certain parcels adjacent to the Base Area commonly
known as the City-owned portion of the Diablo Creek Golf Course, the Coast Guard Property and the
North Concord BART station property. As discussed in Note 18, the Redevelopment Agency was
dissolved, effective February 1, 2012, and the balances of this fund were transferred to the Successor
Agency.

The City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority is a nonprofit corporation organized by the
City of Concord and the Concord Redevelopment Agency under the laws of the State of California. The
Authority was organized to provide financial assistance to the City by financing real and personal
properties and improvements for the benefit of the residents of the City and surrounding areas.
Administrative and related normal business expenses incurred in the day-to-day operations of the
Authority are provided by the City. Such expenses are insignificant to the Authority’s operations. The
Authority obtains financing for City and Agency sponsored projects using leases signed by the City or
Agency as collateral. The amounts of the leases are calculated to provide sufficient resources to repay
the debt incurred to finance the projects.

Concord Sanitary Sewer Services, Inc. was formed to finance the acquisition, construction and
improvement of sewer facilities in the City of Concord. The facilities were constructed in accordance
with the City’s specifications on City property leased back to the City for a rental sufficient to meet the
debt service obligations of the underlying bonds. The lease agreement expired in fiscal year 2001-2002
and all bonds were fully paid and retired, at which time title to the sewer facilities transferred to the City
and remaining surplus funds were distributed to the City. Concord Sanitary Sewer Services, Inc. is
currently inactive.
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The City of Concord Retirement System is governed by the City's Retirement System Ordinance,
Article ll, Chapter 8 of the City of Concord Municipal Code, and is used to account for contributions and
investment income restricted to pay retirement and death benefits of general and police employees.
The Plan’s benefit provisions are frozen and retirement and death benefit payments are restricted to
eligible employees who retired or left the City of Concord eligible for a pension prior to June 28, 1999.
Contribution provisions are established by the City Council. Eligibility, actuarial interest rates,
administration and certain other tasks are the responsibility of the Retirement Board established by the
above ordinance. Financial statements for the above component units can be obtained from the City of
Concord, 1950 Parkside Drive, Concord, CA 94519.

The financial statements exclude the California Public Entity Insurance Authority, the Concord Plaza
Tower Inc., the Concord Pleasant Hill Aquatic Foundation, the Concord Senior Citizens Club, and the
Friends of Camp Concord, as they are administered by boards separate from and independent of the
City.

Basis of Presentation

The City’s basic financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. The Government Accounting Standards Board is the
acknowledged standard setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting standards
followed by governmental entities in the United States of America.

Government-wide Statements: The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities display
information about the primary government (the City) and its component units. These statements
include the financial activities of the overall City government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations
have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish
between the governmental and business-type aclivities of the City. Governmental activities generally
are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions.
Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
each segment of the business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City's
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or
function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a)
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs, (b) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational needs of a particular program and (c) fees,
grants and contributions that are restricted to financing the acquisition or construction of capital assets.
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general
revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds,
including fiduciary funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category-
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary-are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is
on major individual governmental and enterprise funds, each of which is displayed in a separate
column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor
funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Operating expenses result from the cost of providing
those services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
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Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from nonexchange
transactions or ancillary activities.

Major Funds

The City’s major governmental and business-type funds are identified and presented separately in the
fund financial statements. All other funds, called non-major funds, are combined and reported in a
single column, regardless of their fund-type.

Major funds are defined as funds that have either assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses
equal to ten percent of their fund-type total and five percent of the grand total. The General Fund is
always a major fund. The City may also select other funds it believes should be presented as major
funds.

The City reported the following major governmental funds in the accompanying financial statements:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The major revenue
sources for this Fund are property taxes, sales taxes, unrestricted revenues from the State, charges for
services and interest income. Expenditures are made for public safety, public works and other services
not required to be accounted for in another fund.

Concord Housing — The Concord Housing Fund accounts for the activities related to the assets
assumed by the City of Concord as the Housing Successor to the housing activities of the former
Redevelopment Agency of the City of Concord.

Redevelopment Agency — The former Redevelopment Agency Fund accounts for all activities of the
Agency, including 1) tax increment allocations set aside for the purpose of increasing or improving
housing for low-income residents; 2) the accumulation of property taxes for payment of interest and
principal on the Redevelopment Agency tax allocation bonds issued in 1988, 1993, and 2004; and 3)
capital projects connected with downtown redevelopment funded by property tax increment revenues.
As discussed in Note 18, the Redevelopment Agency was dissolved, effective February 1, 2012, and
the balances of this fund were transferred to the Successor Agency.

General Projects Fund — This fund accounts for all general capital improvement projects not funded
from proprietary funds.

The City reported all its Enterprise Funds as major funds in the accompanying financial statements:
Sewer Fund - To account for activities associated with sewage collection, transmission and treatment.

Golf Course Fund — To account for activities associated with the development, operation and
maintenance of the Diablo Creek Golf Course.

The City also reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds — These funds account for workers’ compensation costs, non-reimbursable
portion of insurance claims, post-retirement health care benefits, City facilities’ maintenance expenses,
maintenance and replacement costs of City licensed vehicles, motorized equipment, technology
equipment and office equipment; all of which are provided to other departments on a cost-
reimbursement basis.
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Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary Funds account for assets held by the City as trustee agent for other
governmental units, private organizations or individuals. The City of Concord Retirement System Pension
Trust Fund, accounts for accumulation of resources to be used for retirement annuity payments at
appropriate amounts and times in the future. The Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the
City of Concord is reported in a Private-purpose Trust Fund that is used to account for the activities of the
Successor Agency. The financial activities of these funds are excluded from the City-wide financial
statement, but are presented in separate Fiduciary Fund financial statements.

Basis of Accounting

The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earmed and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of
when the related cash flows take place,

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable
and available. The City considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the
revenues are collected within sixty days after year-end. General capital asset acquisitions are reported
as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under
capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the City gives or receives value without directly receiving or giving
equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants entitlements, and donations. On an accrual
basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied.

Other revenues susceptible to accrual include intergovernmental revenues, interest and charges for
services.

Grant revenues are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements are met. Under the
terms of grant agreements, the City may fund certain programs with a combination of cost-
reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, both restricted and
unrestricted net assets may be available to finance program expenditures. The City's policy is to first
apply restricted grant resources to such programs, followed by general revenues if necessary.

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related
fund liability is incurred. Exceptions to this general rule include accumulated unpaid vacation, sick pay
and other employee amounts which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured,
and principal and interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due. Financial
resources usually are appropriated in other funds for transfer to a debt service fund in the period in
which maturing debt principal and interest must be paid. Such amounts thus are not current liabilities of
the debt service fund, as their settlement will not require expenditure of existing fund assets.

The City follows Statements and interpretations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board and its
predecessors that were issued on or before November 30, 1989, in accounting for its business-type
activities, unless they conflict with Government Accounting Standards Board pronouncements.

Land Held for Redevelopment

In March 2011, the Agency, acting in accordance with Health and Safety Code Sections 33220 and
33430, entered into a Real Property Transfer and Cooperative Agreement with the City whereby the
Agency conveyed all of its real property to the City. The conveyance had been recorded as a transfer
to the City during fiscal 2010-11. Pursuant to ABx1 26, the Land was transferred to the Successor
Agency during fiscal 2011-12 (See Note 18).
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As a result of the transaction discussed above, as of June 30, 2012, the Successor Agency held the
following properties for resale or redevelopment:

a) During fiscal year 2009 the Agency purchased six parcels of land located in the downtown area
to assist in implementing the Agency’s Strategic Plan.

b) A parcel of land held by the Agency was purchased in fiscal year 2007 which will be held for
resale for future development projects.

c) A parcel of land held by the Agency was purchased in fiscal year 2004 which is to be sold in the
future for redevelopment projects.

d) A parcel of land was purchased in fiscal year 2002 which is to be sold in the future for the Town
Center Project.

e) One property purchased in fiscal year 2001 which is to be sold for the purpose of constructing a
new hotel in downtown Concord.

f)  During the year ended June 30, 1999, the Agency purchased a parcel which is to be sold in the
future for development projects.

g) Five properties purchased between 1982-1987 which are being held for resale for future
development projects.

Inventory and Prepaid Items

Inventories are valued at cost (on the first-in, first-out basis). Inventories of the General Fund consist of
expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an expenditure in the General Fund
at the time individual inventory items are consumed. Reported General Fund inventories are equally
offset by a fund balance reserve which indicates that they do not constitute available spendable
resources even though they are a component of net current assets.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future fiscal years and are recorded as prepaid
items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. Prepaid items in governmental funds
are equally offset by a fund balance reserve which indicates that they do not constitute available
spendable resources even though they are a component of net current assets.

Property Taxes and Special Assessment Revenue

The County of Contra Costa levies, bills and collects property taxes for the City; the County remits the
entire amount levied and handles all delinquencies, retaining interest and penalties. Secured and
unsecured property taxes are levied on January 1 of the preceding fiscal year.

Secured property tax is due in two installments, on November 1 and February 1, and becomes a lien
on those dates. It becomes delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respectively. Unsecured property
tax is due on July 1 and becomes delinquent on August 31.
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Compensated Absences

In governmental funds, Compensated Absences (unpaid vacation and sick leave) are recorded as
expenditures in the year paid, as it is the City’s policy to liquidate any unpaid vacation or sick leave at
June 30 from future resources rather than currently available expendable resources. The City’s liability
for Compensated Absences is determined annually. For all governmental funds, amounts expected to
be paid out for permanent liquidation are recorded as fund liabilities; the long term portion is recorded
in the Statement of Net Assets.

Compensated Absences are included in accrued liabilities. Compensated Absences are liquidated by
the fund that has recorded the liability. The long-term portion of governmental activities compensated
absences is liquidated primarily by the General Fund. Compensated Absences are accounted for by
Proprietary funds as expenditures in the year earned. The changes in Compensated Absences of
governmental and business-type activities were as follows:

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
Beginning Balance $3,767,063 $92 141 $3,859,204
Additions 3,176,728 68,752 3,245,480
Payments (2,992,084) (55,443) (3,047,527)
Ending Balance $3,951,707 $105,450 $4,057 157
Due in One Year $2,379,647 $31,571 $2,411,218

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

New Funds

The Concord Housing Fund was created during the fiscal year to account for the activities related to
the assets assumed by the City of Concord as the Housing Successor to the housing activities of the
former Redevelopment Agency of the City of Concord.

The Successor Agency Private Purpose Trust Fund is a private purpose trust fund used to report the
activities and financial position of the Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the City of
Concord.

Closed Fund

The Redevelopment Agency Fund accounts for all activities of the Agency, including 1) tax increment
allocations set aside for the purpose of increasing or improving housing for low-income residents; 2)
the accumulation of property taxes for payment of interest and principal on the Redevelopment Agency
tax allocation bonds issued in 1988, 1993, and 2004, and 3) capital projects connected with downtown
redevelopment funded by property tax increment revenues. As discussed in Note 18, the
Redevelopment Agency was dissolved effective February 1, 2012, and the balances of this fund were
transferred to the Successor Agency.
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NOTE 2 - BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

1.

The City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year
commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the
means of financing them.

Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.

The budget is legally enacted through passage of separate resolutions for the City and for the
Redevelopment Agency.

The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts from one program, department or
account to another within the same fund. All transfers of appropriations affecting Personnel
Service type accounts require the Director of Human Resources and City Manager approval.
Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level without City
Council approval.

The City is required to adopt an annual operating budget on or before June 30 for all funds. From
the effective date of the budget, the amounts stated therein as proposed expenditures become
appropriations to the various funds. The City Council may amend the budget during the fiscal
year.

All governmental fund type annual operating budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with
generally accepted accounting principles.

The City also adopts budgets for its Capital Projects, which are based on the project life rather than
a fiscal year. Therefore, capital project budgets may span several fiscal years. Project
appropriations transfers of $20,000 or more require City Council approval.

. All governmental fund type annual operating budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with
generally accepted accounting principles except for capital outlay expenditures for Special
Revenue Funds which are budgeted on a project time frame rather than on an annual basis, in
conjunction with #7 above.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the
governmental funds. Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the
applicable appropriation. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund
balances since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

Appropriation Lapses
Unexpended appropriations lapse at year end unless budgeted on a project basis.
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NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City’s dependence on property tax receipts, which are received semi-annually, requires it to
maintain significant cash reserves to finance operations during the remainder of the year. The City
pools cash from all sources and all funds except Cash with Fiscal Agents so that it can be safely
invested at maximum yields. Individual funds are able to make expenditures at any time during the
year.

Policies

All investments are carried at fair value and as a general rule investment income is allocated among
funds on the basis of average monthly cash and investment balances in these funds. Interest income
on certain investments is allocated based on the source of the investment and legal requirements
which apply.

California Law requires banks and savings and loan institutions to pledge government securities with a
market value of 110% of the City’s cash on deposit, or first trust deed mortgage notes with a market value
of 150% of the deposit, as collateral for these deposits. Under California Law this collateral is held in a
separate investment pool by another institution in the City's name and places the City ahead of general
creditors of the institution.

Cash and investments are used in preparing proprietary fund statements of cash flows because these
assets are highly liquid and are expended to liquidate liabilities arising during the year.

Classification
Cash and investments are classified in the financial statements as shown below at June 30, 2012:

Internal

Governmental  Enterprise Service Fiduciary
City: Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
Cash and investments available for City operations $39,234,406  $31,826,399  $20,871,493  $13,589,471 $105,521,769
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 4,476,617 252 676 0,438,778 14,168,071
Total cash and investments $43,711,023 $32,079,075 $20,871,493  $23,028249 $119,689,840
Retirement Trust Fund:
Cash and investments $39,818,343

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment Policy

The City of Concord operates its investment activities under the prudent man rule. This affords the City
a broad spectrum of investment opportunities as long as the investment is deemed prudent and is
allowable under current statutes of the State of Califomia. The City is authorized to invest in the
following types of instruments, and the table also identifies certain provisions of the California
Government Code, or the City’s investment policy where it is more restrictive:
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Minimum Maximum Maximum
Maximum Credit Percentage Investment
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Quality of Portfolio In One Issuer
U.8S. Treasury Bills, Bonds and Notes 5 years None None
Obligations issued by United States 5 years None None
Government Agencies
Bankers Acceptances 180 days 30% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days A1/P1/F1 25% (A) 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years A 30% None
Medium Term Corporate Notes 5 years A 30% (A) None
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A Top rating 5% 10%
category

California Local Agency Investment Fund N/A None $50 Mil/account
(LAIF)
Time Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% 10%
Dernvative Securities (B) 5 years None None

(A) Total combined corporate debt (Commercial Paper and Medium Term Notes) may not
exceed 30% of the cost value of the portfolio.

(B) Investments in derivative securities will be made using the Prudent Investor Rule and
will be limited to federal agency callable issues.

Under the City’s Investment Policy, investments not described above are ineligible investments. In
addition, the City may not invest any funds in inverse floaters, range notes, or interest only strips that
are derived from a pool of mortgages in accordance with the California Government Code. With the
exception of callable federal agency securities, any security that derives its value from another asset or
index is prohibited. In addition, the City may not invest any funds in any security that could result in
zero interest accrual if held to maturity.

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

The City must maintain required amounts of cash and investments with trustees or fiscal agents under
the terms of certain debt issues. These funds are unexpended bond proceeds or are pledged reserves
to be used if the City fails to meet its obligations under these debt issues. The California Government
Code requires these funds to be invested in accordance with City resolutions, bond indentures or State
statutes. The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by
fiscal agents. The table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements:
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Minimum
Maximum Credit

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Quality
Federal Agency Securities 5 years AAA
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund
Commercial Paper 270 days A1/P1F1
Negotiable Certificate of Deposits 180 days
Bank Deposits FDIC insured
US Government Treasury Obligations
State/ Local Obligations AAA
Federal Securities
Corporate Notes AAA
Repurchase Agreements AAA
Money Market Mutual Funds AAA
Investment Agreements AAA

Retirement System Authorized Investments

The System’s investment policy authorizes the System to invest in financial instruments in three broad
investment categories; equity, fixed income, and real estate. These financial instruments can include,
but are not limited to, corporate bonds, commercial paper, U.S. government securities, common and
preferred stock, real estate investment trusts, and mutual funds. Fixed income investments may
include bonds and commercial paper in order to provide added flexibility in managing the fixed income
portfolio.

The asset allocation ranges for the plan are as follows:

Allocation Ranges

Target Mix Minimum Maximum

Large/Medium Cap 30% 20% 45%
Domestic Equity

International Equity 7.5 2 15
Small Cap Equity 7.5 2 15
Domestic Real Estate 0 0 10
Domestic Fixed Income 50 40 60
Cash 5 0 20

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. Normally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair
value to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways the City manages its exposure to interest
rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing
cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity
evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.
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Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s and Retirement System’s investments
(including investments held by bond trustees) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the
following table that shows the distribution of the City's investments by maturity or earliest call date:

City and Fiscal Agents:

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

12 months or 13 to 24 25 to 36
Less Months Months Owver 36 Months Total
Investment Type:
U.S. Gowernment Agencies $23,300,363 $9,083,248 $2,060,770 $6,116,210 $40,560,591
Medium Term Corporate Notes 2,057,360 1,055,380 5,194,850 5,156,536 13,464,126
LAIF 41,273,849 41,273,849
CAMP 8,724,796 8,724,796
Held by bond trustee:
U.S. Gowernment Agencies 983,556 983,566
Money Market Funds
(U.S. Securities) 7,490,838 7,490,838
U.S. Treasury Notes 490,191 490,191
Total $83,337,397 $11,122,184 $7,255,620 $11,272,746 112,987,947
Cash deposits with banks and on hand 6,701,893
Total Cash and Inwestments $119,689,840

Retirement Trust Funds:

Remaining Maturity (in Months)
12 months or 25 to 60

Less Months Over 80 Months Total
Investment Type:
Money Market Mutual Funds $832,627 $832,627
Corporate Debt Instruments 497,115 $2,529,320 $5,971,748 8,998,183
LAIF 1,320,702 1,320,702
Federal Agency Securities 281,035 2,918,954 3,199,989
Municipal Bonds 863,054 863,054
Pooled Investments 3,600,904 3,600,904
U 8 Treasury Notes 697,086 1,127,588 1,824,674
Total $6,251,348 $3,507,441 $10,881,344 20,640,133
Non-Maturing Investments:
Common Stock 11,573,860
Mutual Funds 7,604,350
Total Cash and Investments $39,818,343
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The City and the Retirement System are participants in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that
is regulated by California Government Code Section 164292 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the
State of California. The City reports its investment in LAIF at the fair value amount provided by LAIF,
which is the same as the value of the pool share. The balance is available for withdrawal on demand,
and is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost
basis. Included in LAIF’s investment portfolio are collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-
backed securities, other asset-backed securities, loans to certain state funds, and floating rate
securities issued by federal agencies, government-sponsored enterprises, United States Treasury
Notes and Bills, and corporations. At June 30, 2012, these investments have an average maturity of
268 days.

The average maturity of cash and investment available for operations at June 30, 2012 was 555 days.

Fair value of Investments

GASB Statement 31 requires governments to present investments at fair value. The City adjusts the
carrying value of its investment to reflect the fair value at each fiscal year-end, and it includes the effect
of this adjustment in income for that fiscal year. At June 30, 2012, the cost of investments was
$233,308 less than the City’s fair market value. The City has included the following net increases in
the fair value of investments in income as follows: $32,168 in General Fund, $95,644 in the Sewer
Enterprise Fund, $785 in the Golf Course Enterprise Fund, and $91,106 in all other funds. The City
holds investments to maturity.

At June 30, 2012, the cost of the Retirement System’s investments was $13,605 less than the City's
fair market value.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Presented below is the actual rating as of June 30, 2012 for each investment type as
provided by Standard & Poor’s for the City’s investments and Moody's for the Retirement System.

City and Fiscal Agents:

Investment Type AAA /T AAAM AA+ [ AA T AA- A+ [ATA Total
U.S. Government Agencies $41,544,147 $41,544,147
Medium Term Corporate Notes $4,230,260 7,174,996 $2,058,870 13,464,126
Money Market Funds
- (U.S. Securities) 7,490,838 7,490,838
Totals $11,721,098 $48,719,143 $2,058,870 62,499,111
Exempt from rating:
U.S. Treasury Notes 490,191
Not rated:
LAIF 41,273,849
CAMP 8,724,796
Total Investments $112,987,947
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Retirement Trust Funds:

Investment Type Aaa/ Aaam AAA Aal/Aa2/ Aa3 A1/ A2/ A3 Baal/Baa2?/Baa3 Total
Money Market Mutual Funds $832,627 $832,627
Medium Temn Corporate Notes 1,797,358 $242,657 $327,037 $2,294,476 $4,336,655 8,998,183
U.S. Gowernment Agencies 3,199,989 3,199,989
Municipal Bonds 609,979 253,075 863,054
Totals $5,829,974 $242,657 $937,016  $2,547,551 $4,336,655 13,893,853
Exempt from rating:
U S Treasury Notes 1,824,674
Not rated:
LAIF 1,320,702
Common Stock 11,573,860
Mutual Funds 7,604,350
Pooled Investments 3,600,904
Total Investments $39,818,343

Concentration of Credit Risk

Investments in the securities of any individual issuer, other than U. S. Treasury securities, mutual
funds, and external investment fund that represent 5% or more of total Entity-wide investments are as

follows at June 30, 2012:

City and Fiscal Agents:

Fund Issuer Type of Investments Amount
Entity Wide:
Federal Farm Credit Bank Federal Agency Securities $17,087,000
Federal Home Loan Bank Federal Agency Securities 11,091,436
Federal National Morigage Association  Federal Agency Securities 9,345,233

NOTE 4 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Current Interfund Balances
Current Interfund balances arise out of short term

cash flow needs and are due from one fund to

another, all of which are expected to be repaid in the normal course of business. At June 30, 2012 the

interfund balances are as follows:

DUE TO OTHER FUNDS DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS AMOUNT

General Projects Capital
Projects Fund General Fund $244,268
Golf Course Enterprise Fund General Fund 55,622
Monument Community Partners hip General Fund 27,114
Assessment Districts General Fund 139,822
Internal Senvice Funds General Fund 1,565,465
$2,032,291
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L.ong-Term Interfund Advances

At June 30, 2012 the funds below had made the following advances:

Amount of
Fund Receiving Advance Fund Making Advance Advance
General Fund Concord Housing Fund $3,000,000 (a)
Sewer Enterprise Fund 3,000,000 (a)
Sewer Enterprise Fund 560,000 (b)
Worker's Compensation Fund 2,000,000 (a)
Golf Course Enterprise Fund General Fund 730,100 (o)
Maintenance Districts
Special Revenue Fund Traffic System Management Special Revenue Fund 397,500 (d)
Special Developers
Capital Projects Fund General Fund 1,132,473 (e)
$10,810,073
(a) This General Fund advance was made during fiscal year 2009-2010 to fund the retirement of

(b)
(c)

(d)
(e)

$8.2 million of the 1995 Lease Revenue Bonds. The advance bears interest at the LAIF rate
plus 0.5% to be paid on a quarterly basis. As a result of this nonrecurring long-term advance,
the City is no longer obligated to pay 8.24% interest on the retired bonds. The General Fund
will repay these advances annually starting no later than fiscal year 2014-2015, with a final
payment expected in fiscal year 2030 and will pay approximately $1.9 million in interest over
the life of the repayment.

This General Fund advance will be repaid in installments starting in fiscal year 2021 and bears
no interest.

The Golf Enterprise Fund advance was made during fiscal years 2007 and 2008 and will be
factored into the next 10 year budget plan and repaid as business improves within the regional
golf market.

The Maintenance Districts Fund advance will be repaid in 6 annual payments beginning in
fiscal year 2012 and bears interest from 3.5 - 5%.

The Special Developers Fund advance will be repaid in installments starting in fiscal year
2013 and bears interest of 3% as described in the City’s Capital Improvement Program 10 year
plan.
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Transfers between funds

With Council approval, resources may be transferred from one City fund to another without a
requirement for repayment. Transfers between funds during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 were

as follows:
Amount
Fund Receiving Transfers Fund Making Transfers Pumpose Transferred
General Fund Redewelopment Agency Fund To Fund Qperating Costs $1,207,309
General Reimbursable Projects
General Fund Capital Projects Funds To Fund Capital Projects 7,437
Traffic System Management
General Fund Special Revenue Fund To Fund Operating Costs 4,698
Housing & Community Senices
General Fund Special Revenue Fund To Fund Operating Costs 27,398
Storm Water Management
General Fund Special Revenue Fund To Fund Operating Costs 431,300
Monument Community Parinership
General Fund Special Revenue Fund To Fund Operating Costs 588
Fleet Maintenance/Replacement
General Fund Intemal Senice Fund To Fund Operating Costs 600,000
Building Maintenance
General Fund Intemal Senice Fund To Fund Anticipated Costs per Budget 600,000
Redewelopment Agency General Fund To Unwind Land Held for Redevelopment Transfer 11,416,332
General Reimbursable Projects General Fund To Fund Capital Projects 374,247
Intergovemmental
General Reimbursable Projects Capital Projects Fund To Fund Capital Projects 550
Debt Senice Funds:
Police Facilities Revenue Bonds Redewelopment Agency Fund To Fund Debt Senice 478,484
Parking Structure Revenue Bonds Redewvelopment Agency Fund To Fund Debt Senice 156,674
ABAG General Fund To Fund Debt Senice 102,489
Refunding Lease Agreement Redewelopment Agency Fund To Fund Debt Senvce 55,206
Risk Management/Liability
Refunding Lease Agreement Intema! Senice Fund To Fund Debt Senvice 423,603
Energy Lease General Fund To Fund Debt Senice 121,874
Maintenance District
Energy Lease Special Revenue Fund To Fund Debt Senice 128,582
Building Maintenance
Energy Lease Intemal Senice Fund To Fund Debt Senice 71,187
Capital Projects Fund:
Intergovernmental
Special Developers Capital Projects Fund To Fund Capital Projects 4,662
Special Dewelopers
Intergovernmental Capital Projects Fund To Fund Capital Projects 15,360
Internal Service Funds:
Risk Management/Liability Workers' Compensation To Fund Anticipated Costs Per Budget 100,000
Total Transfers $16,327,980
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Transfers Between the City and the Agency

With Board and Council approval, transfers are made between the City and the Agency to reimburse
the entity which has made an expenditure on behalf of another entity. In fiscal 2012, the
Redevelopment Agency transferred $690,364 to the City to fund debt service and $1,207,309 to fund
operational costs associated with the Agency’s affordable housing activities. In addition, the City's
General Fund transferred land held for redevelopment in the amount of $11,416,332 back to the
Redevelopment Agency.

Internal Balances

Internal balances represent the net interfund receivables and payable remaining after the elimination of
all such balances within governmental and business—type activities.

Note 5 — Loans, Notes Receivable and Development Agreements

The City and former Agency engaged in programs designed to encourage husiness enterprises or
construction or improvement in low-to-moderate income housing or other projects. Under these
programs, grants or loans are provided under favorable terms to businesses, home-owners or
developers who agree to spend these funds in accordance with the City’'s terms. Although these loans
and notes are expected to be repaid in full, their balance has been offset by deferred revenue. They
are not expected to be collected during fiscal year 2012. These loans and notes were comprised of the
following at June 30, 2012:

Housing Assistance $375,800
Housing Conservation 3,576,120
Downtown Revitalization and
Low and Moderate Income Housing Rehabilitation 14,213,300
Lakeside Apartments 2,936,754
Detroit Avenue Apartments 618,000
Virginia Lane 3,205,309
Successor Agency Loan 9,495 937
Total loans and notes receivable 334,421,220
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Housing Assistance
This program provides housing assistance to Concord residents through a variety of housing
programs.

Housing Conservation
This program involves loans made to rehabilitate housing within the City of Concord which are funded
by Community Development Block Grant and Redevelopment Agency monies.

Downtown Revitalization and Low and Moderate Income Housing Rehabilitation

Low and no interest loans are made by the Redevelopment Agency to provide businesses assistance
for rehabilitating buildings in the downtown area and to businesses or individuals for the rehabilitation
of housing within the City of Concord owned and/or occupied by persons of low and moderate income.
Included in these loans, is one loan amounting to $13,484 which was made to a current employee.

With the dissolution of the Agency effective February 1, 2012, non-housing assets of the
Redevelopment Agency Fund including the Concord Residential Club Loan were assumed by a
Successor Agency as discussed in Note 18. The former Redevelopment Agency’s portion of this loan
totaled $530,150.

Lakeside Apartmenis

The City and the Agency entered into a $3,433,945 loan agreement with Lakeside Apartments, L.P. for
the acquisition and rehabilitation of Lakeside apartments. An additional loan of $283,000 was made in
fiscal year 2007 which brings the loan to $3,716,945. Of the $283,000, $110,000 is funded by
Community Development Block Grants, $93,000 is funded by Redevelopment Agency, and $80,000 is
funded by California State EAGR funds. The outstanding balance of the loan bears interest at a rate of
1% per annum. The Agency expects the loan to be repaid on November 5, 2058.

Detroit Avenue Apartments

The City entered into a $600,000 loan agreement with Standard Housing Company for the acquisition
and rehabilitation of a ten-unit apartment complex. The outstanding balance of the loan bears interest at
a rate of 3% per annum. The loan was funded by CFHA funds. The payment of interest commenced on
July 1, 2005 and is due monthly in the amount of $1,500. The Agency expects the loan to be repaid on
April 30, 2014.

Virginia Lane

In June 1999, the City and the Agency entered into a $1,984,200 loan agreement with Virginia Lane
Limited Partnership for the rehabilitation of Golden Glen and Maplewood Apartments. An additional
loan of $450,000 was made in fiscal year 2007 which brings the loan to $2,434,200. Of the $450,000,
$100,000 is funded by Community Development Block Grant funds and $350,000 is funded by CFHA
funds. The outstanding balance of the loan bears interest at a rate of 3% per annum. The repayments
on the loan shall be made from residual receipts. The Agency expects the loan to be repaid on March
2, 2061.

Lehmer Investment Company Development Agreement

in August 2008, the City and the Agency entered into a $170,000 loan agreement with Lehmer
Investment Company for the purchase of the Agency's parking lot at 1925 Market Street. The
outstanding balance of the loan bears interest at a rate of 3% per annum. Subsequently, the loan
agreement was amended in July 2009 to extend the payment terms. The monthly interest payments
began August 2010. The loan was fully repaid during the fiscal year.
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Fry’s Electronics Development Agreement

The former Redevelopment Agency entered into a $3,900,000 loan agreement with Fry’s Electronics to
provide assistance with rehabilitation of the building and surrounding site improvements. The
substance of the agreement is that Fry’s will be paid a portion of future sales tax revenues produced by
the development. These payments are conditioned on the generation of annual sales tax revenues by
the development of at least $500,000 per year, adjusted annually for inflation, and the Agency is not
required to use any other resources to pay these amounts. Beginning with the year that the sales tax
collections first exceed the threshold, the Agency has agreed to pay Fry’s compound interest of 7% on
the loan principal balance not yet disbursed to Fry’s, however the calculation of this annual interest due
is limited to the lesser of the actual calculation or the principal amount of the loan disbursed to Fry’s in
that year. The loan will be forgiven after ten calendar years as long as the building remains operated
by Fry’s Electronics. In addition, the Agency has entered into an agreement with the City under which
the City has agreed to annually reimburse the Agency for any amounts that it has paid to Fry’s, but that
reimbursement is subordinated to the City’s other obligations.

During fiscal year 2012, sales tax collections did not meet the threshold; therefore the former
Redevelopment Agency and the Successor Agency did not disburse any funds to Fry’s in accordance
with the terms of the agreement. At June 30, 2012, the remaining portion of sales tax revenues
subject to reimbursement was $3.9 million plus interest at 7%. The agreement terminates in 2019,
regardless of whether the entire loan amount has been disbursed.

California Automotive Retailing Group Development Agreement

In July 2009 the Agency entered into a $250,000 interest free loan agreement with California
Automotive Retailing Group to rehabilitate and improve an existing automotive dealership site at 1330
Concord Avenue. Monthly payments of $2,083 for 120 months started on October 1, 2009. The Agency
expects the loan to be repaid on September 1, 2019.

With the dissolution of the Agency effective February 1, 2012, a portion of the assets of the
Redevelopment Agency Fund, including the California Automotive Retailing Group Development
Agreement were assumed by a Successor Agency as discussed in Note 18.

Successor Agency Loan

Beginning in 1986, the former Redevelopment Agency General Capital Projects Fund has been
required by the State to set aside 20% of property tax increments for low and moderate income
housing. However, under a transition rule, the Agency’s General Capital Projects Fund has been
allowed to use these set-asides for current capital projects as long as it had a written plan for repaying
these amounts to the Concord Housing Special Revenue Fund. At June 30, 2012 the amount due that
Fund under the repayment plan totaled $9,495,937. The advance does not bear interest.

With the dissolution of the Agency effective February 1, 2012, the Successor Agency assumed the
obligation to repay the above advance and has recorded a loan payable to the Concord Housing Fund
as discussed in Note 18 below. These loans had previously been reported as interfund advances.
However, with the transfer of the associated liabilities to the Successor Agency, repayment of the loans
is subject to the provisions of Health and Safety Code Section 34176 and the change has been
reported as an Extraordinary ltem as discussed in Note 18.
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NOTE 6 — EMPLOYEE COMPUTER LOANS

All full-time City employees who have completed their probationary period are eligible to obtain a loan
up to $3,000 with a 4% interest rate to purchase a computer. All requests for loans are subject to
review and approval by the Information Technology Department. Equipment purchased must be
compatible with the City’'s computer equipment. Repayment of these loans is handled through payroll
deductions which are spread over the life of the loan, not to exceed three years. Employees must pay
off any outstanding balance of their loans upon ending employment with the City. As of June 30, 2012,
1 employee had $102 in loans due to the City. The program was discontinued effective August 15,
2009, with no new loans being issued.

NOTE 7 - CAPITAL ASSETS

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not
available. Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date
contributed. The City’s policy is to capitalize all assets with costs exceeding certain minimum
thresholds and with useful lives exceeding two years

The City has recorded all its public domain (infrastructure) capital assets, which include roads, bridges,
curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems and lighting systems in the government-wide
financial statements.

All capital assets with limited useful lives are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. The
purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets equitably among all users over the life of
these assets. The amount charged to depreciation expense each year represents that year's pro rata
share of the cost of capital assets.

Depreciation of capital assets in service is provided using the straight line method which means the
cost of the asset is divided by its expected useful life in years and the result is charged to expense
each year until the asset is fully depreciated. The City has assigned the useful lives and capitalization
thresholds listed below to capital assets.

Capitalization

Useful Lives Threshold
Ground improvements 25-33 Years $100,000
Buildings and improvements 25-33 Years 100,000
Machinery and equipment 5-10 Years 7,500
Vehicles 5-10 Years 7,500
Streets 30 Years 100,000
Sidewalks 50 Years 100,000
Storm drains/catch basins 100 Years 100,000
Traffic signals 30 Years 100,000
Sewer lines 40-50 Years 100,000

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
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Capital Asset Additions and Retirements
Capital asset transactions and balances comprise the following at June 30, 2012:

Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated:
Ground improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Streets
Sidewalks
Storm drains/catch basins
Street Lights
Traffic Signals
Tota! capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Ground improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Streets
Sidewalks
Storm drains/catch basins
Traffic Signals
Street Lights

Total accumulated depreciation

Gowernmental activity capital assets, net

Balance at Transfers to Balance at
June 30, 2011 Additions Refirements Transfers Successor Agency June 30,2012

$16,025,596 ($427,591) ($448,293) $15,149,712
4,034,194 $7,248,968 (3,367) ($775,554) (36,342) 10,467,899
20,059,790 7,248,968 (430,958) (775,554) (484,635) 25,617,611
15,720,223 663,179 16,383,402
77,331,371 (361,868) (30,827,102) 46,142,401
10,938,516 519,212 (25,000) 60,182 11,492,910
8,149,009 1,126,542 (714,668) 52,193 8,613,076
425,020,770 1,586,630 426,607,400
46,969,475 347,553 47,317,028
443,308,069 443,308,069
2,470193 1,786,040 4,256,233
25,652,112 527,607 26,179,719
1,055,559,738 5,893,584 (1,101,536) 775,554 (30,827,102) 1,030,300,238
(8,283,278) (401,862) (8,684,940)
(32,285,999) (1,759,668) 250,494 12,678,853 (21,118,320)
(7,748,146) (1,164,782) 25,000 (8,887,928)
(7,334,815) (546,343) 714,668 (7,166,490)
(210,931,316) (14,197,667) (225,128,983)
(19,598,341) (945,139) (20,543 ,480)
(67,310,816) (4,433,081) (91,743,897)
(15,778,901) (863,864) (16,642,765)
(276,837) (112,107) (388,944)
(389,548 ,449) (24,424 ,313) 990,162 12,678,853 (400,303,747)
$686,071,079 ($11,281,761) ($542,332) ($18,632,884) $655,614,102

In March 2011, the former Redevelopment Agency, acting in accordance with Health and Safety
Code Sections 33220 and 33430, entered into a Real Property Transfer and Cooperative
Agreement with the City whereby the Agency conveyed all of its real property to the City. The
conveyance had been recorded as a transfer to the City during fiscal 2010-11. However, pursuant
to provisions of ABx1 26, these assets were returned to the Agency during fiscal 2011-12. (See

Note 18).
Agency in fiscal 2011-12.

Business-Type Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Sewer lines
Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Sewer lines

Total accumulated depreciation
Business-type activity capital assets, net

As required by ABx1 26, Agency capital assets were transferred to the Successor

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2011 Additions Retirements Transfers June 30,2012

$395,182 $395,182
328,223 $1,169,992 ($175,015) 1,323,200
723,405 1,169,992 (175,015) 1,718,382
8,700,986 8,700,986
280,161 ($31,795) 248,366
209,310,464 175,015 209,485,479
218,291,611 (31,795) 175,015 218,434,831
(4,861,151) (237,471) (5,098,622)
(273,011) (953) 31,795 (242,169)
(132,718,133) (4,187,950) (136,906,083)
(137,852,295) (4,426,374) 31,795 (142,246,874)
$81,162,721 ($3,256,382) $77,006,339
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Construction in progress comprised the following at June 30, 2012:
TOTAL PROJECT EXPENDED TO DATE
AUTHORIZATION June 30, 2012
Governmental Activities:
Meadow Homes Pool $1,749,134 $1,727,604
Replace HVAC various buildings 2,326,000 2,082,915
Downtown Streetscape & Lighting 945,000
Sotar at Concord Community Park 1,300,000 817,457
Back up Pump Concord Community Pool 839,004 720,626
Miscellaneous Projects 6,153,238 5,199,297
Total Governmental Activities 13,312,376 10,547,899
Business-Type Activities:
Sanitary Sewer Upgrade - Downtown 4,200,000 1,183,056
Citywide Sanitary Sewer Main Extension 200,000 132,144
Replace HVAC various buildings 8,000 8,000
Total Business-Type Activities 4,408,000 1,323,200
Total $17,720,376 $11,871,099

Substantially all the project authorization amounts above are represented by signed contracts and have
been recorded as encumbrances.

Depreciation Allocation — Governmental Activities
Depreciation expense is charged to functions and programs based on their usage of the related assets.
The amounts allocated to each function or program was as follows:

Governmental Activities

Public Works $20,989,541
Internal Service Fund 3,434,772
Total $24,424 313

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Description and Activity
The City generally incurs long-term debt to finance projects or purchase assets which will have useful
lives equal to or greater than the related debt.

The City’s governmental activities long-term debt is recorded only in the government-wide financial
statements. This debt will be repaid only out of governmental funds but is not accounted for in these
funds because this debt does not require an appropriation or expenditure in this accounting period.

In governmental fund types, debt discounts and issuance costs are recognized in the current period.
Debt discounts and issuance costs incurred by proprietary fund types are deferred and amortized over
the term of the debt using the bonds-outstanding method, which approximates the effective interest
method.

The City’s debt issues and transactions are summarized below and discussed in detail thereafter.
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Current Year Transactions and Balances

Transfers
Repayment To Successor Current
Source June 30, 2011 Additions Retirerments Agency June 30, 2012 Fortion
Governmental Activity Debt:
Revenue Bonds:
1993 Lease Revenue Bonds, 2.70- 5.25%,
due 08/01/13 a $1,390,000 $440,000 ($950,000)
1995 Performing Arts Lease Revenue Bonds,
6.33- 8.24%, due 08/01/20 b 4,000,000 860,000 $3,440,000 $520,000
2001 Lease Revenue Bonds, 4.0-5.13%
due 03/01/23 a 6,530,000 (6,530,000)
Tax Allogation Bonds:
Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2004
3.9-5.05%, due 07/01/25 c 57,205,000 3,835,000 ($53,370,000)
Less deferred amount on refunding c (2,072,185) (296,027) 1,776,158
Certificates of Participation:
ABAG 41 - Centre Concord
4.0-5.0%, due 8/01/18 d 95,000 85,000
Refunding Lease Agreement
3.6%, due 09/01/19 e 4,645,500 373,500 (3,067,000) 1,205,000 389,000
Lease Purchase Agreement
4.75% due 8/30/27 f 8,384,040 $50,930 124,869 8,310,101 268,019
Notes Payable:
3%, due 03/01/14 g 1,336,767 35,610 1,372,377
Capital Lease:
Key Government Finance, 4.65% due 9/15/12 h 169,716 149,705 20,011 20,011
Motorola Safety Radio, 3.03% due 12/01/16 h 1,079,772 166,804 912,968 171,859
Cisco VOIP Bquiprment, 3.95% due 7/08/14 h 346,175 81,437 264,738 84,751
Hubb Systems Mobile Digital Conputers, 4.75% due 4/1/13 h 327,484 160,031 167,453 167,453
Celor Hybrid Mutti-Function Printer Equiprrent, 5.5% due 11/01/16 h 112,666 23,495 89,161 24,927
NetApp Capital Solutions Softw are, 3.55% due 4/1/2016 h 421,283 79,406 341,877 80,982
Total Government Activity Debt $83,549,925 $507,823 $5793,220  ($82,140,842) $16,123686  $1,727,002
Business-Type Activity Debt:
2004 Certificates of Parficipation - Wastew ater
System Improvement, 2.0-4.63%, due 2/01/29 i $10,060,000 $3095,000 $9,595,000 $410,000
2007 Certificates of Parlicipation - Wastew ater
System Improverrent, 3.75-4.50%, due 2/01/32 i 11,410,000 355,000 11,055,000 370,000
ABAG 41 Cerfificates of Participation - Dablo
Creek Golf Course, 4.0-5.0%, due 8/01118 d 1,375,000 55,000 1,320,000 160,000
Total Business Type Activity Debt $22,875,000 $805,000 $22,070,000 $940,000

Repayments on the above debt are made from the following sources:

a. Lease revenue received by the Redevelopment Agency Capital Projects Fund until debt
assumed by Successor Agency on February 1, 2012. See Note 18.

b. Lease revenues received by Live Nation and from general & operating revenues.

¢. Incremental property taxes received by the Redevelopment Agency Capital Projects Fund until
debt assumed by Successor Agency on February 1, 2012. See Note 18,

d. General and operating revenues available for lease payment in the ABAG Debt Service Fund
and Golf Course Enterprise Fund.

e. Redevelopment Agency, until debt assumed by Successor Agency on February 1, 2012 (See
Note 18) and General Fund revenues.

f. Savings from the energy efficiency improvements.

g. Notes payable received by the Housing and Community Services Special Revenue Fund.
Included is $950,000 in principal and the remaining balance is interest.

h. Operating revenues available for lease payment in the Information Technology Replacement
Internal Service Fund.

i. Operating revenues received by the Sewer Enterprise Fund.

With the dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency as discussed in Note 18, a Successor Agency
assumed the long-term debt of the Redevelopment Agency as of February 1, 2012, which has been
reported as a transfer above and as an Extraordinary ltem in the Statement of Activities. See Note 18
below.
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Debt Service Requirements
Debt service and capitalized lease requirements are shown below for all long-term debt:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
For the Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest

2013 $1,727,002 $779,932 $940,000 $942 243
2014 2,926,836 690,630 975,000 906,086
2015 1,582,143 581,277 1,015,000 867,076
2016 1,066,208 508,813 1,055,000 825,604
2017 976,178 451,179 1,095,000 2,365,632
2018 - 2022 3,977,346 1,496,941 5,525,000 3,233,579
2023 - 2027 3,867,973 487,474 6,260,000 2,037,271
2028 - 2032 5,205,000 617,300
Total $16,123,686 $4,996,246 $22,070,000 $11,794,798

The City’s bond indentures contain significant limitations and restrictions regarding annual debt service
requirements, maintenance of and flow of monies through various restricted accounts and minimum
revenue bond coverages. City management believes the City is in compliance with all such indenture
requirements.

Revenue Bonds

On September 9, 1993 the City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority issued the 1993 Lease
Revenue Bonds in the principal amount of $9,700,000, bearing interest at rates ranging from 2.7% to
5.25%, due August 1, 2013. The Bonds are collateralized by revenue received from the City by the
Authority under the lease agreement and by the Authority’s interest in the site and facilities lease.
Proceeds from the Bonds were used to finance a portion of the Police Facilities Project leased by the
City from the former Redevelopment Agency. The former Redevelopment Agency had agreed to
reimburse the City for these lease payments. On June 24, 2010 the City entered into a Refunding
Lease Agreement and the proceeds were used to retire $3,520,000 of the bonds. This obligation has
been assumed by the Successor Agency pursuant to the dissolution law. See Note 18.

On August 1, 1995 the City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority issued Lease Revenue Bonds
in the principal amount of $18,700,000, bearing interest at rates ranging from 6.33% to 8.24% due
August 1, 2020. The Bonds are collateralized by revenue received from the City by the Authority under
the Concord Pavilion lease agreement and by the Authority’s interest in the site and facilities lease.
Proceeds from the Bonds were used to repay the Concord Performing Arts Center Authority’s 1973
Revenue Bonds, due in 1999, and partially finance the renovation and expansion of Concord Pavilion
which is leased by the City from the Authority.

On September 21, 2009 the City issued a tender offer for the 1995 Performing Arts Lease Revenue
Bonds for up to $8.5 million. As a result the City purchased $8.235 million of the bonds at an 8%
premium and made a payment to retire that portion of the bonds. As a result of this transaction, the
City has lowered its interest liability from 8.24% to bondholders to LAIF plus 0.5% interest to other
funds in the City.
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On April 4, 2001 the City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority issued Lease Revenue Bonds in
the principal amount of $9,580,000, bearing interest at rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.13% due March 1,
2023. The Bonds are collateralized by revenue received from the City by the Authority under the Civic
Center and Corporation Yard lease agreement and by the Authority’s interest in the site and facilities
lease. Proceeds from the Bonds were used to finance the design and construction, and to equip and
landscape a new three-level, 432-space parking structure which is leased by the City from the
Authority. The former Redevelopment Agency agreed to reimburse the City for these lease payments.
This obligation has been assumed by the Successor Agency pursuant to the dissolution law. See Note
18.

Certificates of Participation

On July 1, 1998, the City issued $3,560,000 of Certificates of Participation (COPs) to fund Diablo
Creek Golf Course improvements and to defease $810,000 of outstanding ABAG 41 Certificates of
Participation. Proceeds from the COPs were placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for the future
debt service payments on the defeased COPs. The defeased COPs were called December 1, 1998.
The COPs bear interest at 4.0% - 5.0% and are due August 1, 2018. Principal payments are due
annually on August 1. Interest payments are due semi-annually on February 1 and August 1.

On February 1, 2004 the City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority issued Certificates of
Participation (COPs) in the principal amount of $12,605,000, bearing interest at rates ranging from
2.0% to 4.625% due February 1, 2029. Proceeds from the COPs were used to finance the first phase
of wastewater system capital improvement projects.

On October 18, 2007, the City Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority issued Certificates of
Participation (COPs) in the principal amount of $12,820,000, bearing interest rates ranging from 3.75%
to 4.50%. Proceeds from the COPs were used to fund the next phase of the wastewater system
improvement project to install pipelines from the Concord pump station to the intersection of Meridian
Park Boulevard and Galaxy Way. Principal is payable annually on February 1 and interest is payable
semi-annually February 1 and August 1 through 2032.

Under related installment agreements, the City remits installments to the Authority which are used to
repay debt service on the 2004 and 2007 COPS. The City has pledged Wastewater System Net
Revenues defined as gross revenues less operating and maintenance expenses, to be used to make
required installments. The pledge of future Net Revenues ends upon repayment of the $32,301,605
million in remaining debt service on the COPS which is scheduled to occur in 2033. As disclosed in the
originating offering documents, projected net revenues are expected to provide coverage over debt
service of 3.40 over the life of the bonds. For fiscal year 2012, Wastewater System Revenues
including operating revenues and non-operating interest earnings amounted to $19,645,294 and
maintenance and operating costs amounted to $18,021,090 Net Revenues available for debt service
amounted to $1,624,204 which represented coverage of .98 over the $1,657,988 in debt service.

Refunding l.ease Agreement

On June 24, 2010 the City and the former Redevelopment Agency entered into a Refunding Lease
Agreement in the amount of $5,075,000. The proceeds from the Agreement were used to retire a
portion of the outstanding 1993 Lease Revenue Bonds and to fully repay the 1999 Judgment
Obligation Bonds. The Agreement bears interest at 3.6% and is due semi-annually on March 1 and
September 1. Principal payments are due annually on September 1 until September 1, 2019. As of
February 1, 2012 the Redevelopment Agency’s portion of the lease agreement was assumed by the
Successor Agency as discussed in Note 18.
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Lease Purchase Agreement

On January 25, 2011 the City entered into a lease purchase agreement with Chevron Energy Service
Company in the amount of $8,434,970. The proceeds from the agreement are used reduce citywide
utility costs by making energy efficiency improvements. The agreement bears interest at 4.75% and is
due semi-annually on June 1 and December 1. Principal payments are due semi-annually on June 1
and December 1 until December 1, 2026.

Notes Payable

The City entered into two loan agreements with California Housing Finance Agency (CHFA);
$1,000,000 was used for a loan to Lakeside apartments (see Note 5), and $1,600,000 is to be used for
the Detroit Avenue Apartments loan (see Note 5) and a Multifamily Acquisition and Rehabilitation Loan
Program. During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011, the City paid off the Lakeside portion of the
note. As of June 30, 2007, the City had drawn down $600,000 for the Detroit Avenue Apartment loan,
and $350,000 for the Virginia Lane projects; the remaining $650,000 will not be drawn down. The
CHFA funds bear interest at a 3.0% simple rate and all payments of principal and interest are deferred
for a ten year period.

Capital Leases

On September 15, 2007, and October 15, 2007 the City entered into lease agreements in the amount
of $1,250,352 and $126,870, respectively with Key Government Finance, Incorporated, to acquire
equipment for network upgrades. The City agreed to pay the leases in monthly payments for $27,013
and $2,893, respectively, for 48 months.  Since the leases are in essence a financing agreement, the
cost of the equipment and the amount of the lease have been included in the City’s financial
statements.

On November 30, 2010, the City entered into a lease agreement in the amount of $1,279,294 for the
purchase of radio subscriber units for the Police Department. The City agreed to pay the lease in
annual payments for $250,609 for seven years. Since the lease is in essence a financing agreement,
the cost of the equipment and the amount of the lease has been included in the City’s financial
statements.

On July 13, 2010, the City entered into a lease agreement in the amount of $441,698 for the purchase
of Voice over internet protocol (VOIP) equipment. The lease bears interest at 3.95% and is due
annually on July 9 annually. The principal payment is due annually on July 9 untii July 9, 2014.

On May 27, 2011, the City entered into a lease agreement in the amount of $502,703 for the purchase
of mobile digital computers. The lease bears interest at 4.55% and is due annually on April 1. The
principal payment is due annually on April 1 until April 1, 2013.

On September 30, 2010, the City entered into a lease agreement in the amount of $127,566 for hybrid
color multi-function printer equipment. The lease bears interest at 5.5% monthly and the City agreed to
pay the leases in monthly payments for $2,462 for 5 years.

On July 1, 2012 the City entered into a lease agreement in the amount of $421,283 for network
attached storage equipment. The lease bears interest at 3.55% quarterly and the City agreed to pay
the lease in quarterly payments for $23,473 for 5 years.
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NOTE 9 — NET ASSETS AND FUND BALANCES

Net Assets are measured on the full accrual basis, while Fund Balance is measured on the modified
accrual basis.

Net Assets

Net Assets are the excess of all the City’s assets over all its liabilities, regardless of fund. Net Assets are
divided into three captions. These captions apply only to Net Assets, which are determined only at the
Government-wide ievel, and are described below:

Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt describes the portion of Net Assets which are represented
by the current net book value of the City's capital assets, less the outstanding batance of any debt issued
to finance these assets.

Restricted describes the portion of Net Assets which are restricted as to use by the terms and conditions
of agreements with outside parties, governmental regulations, laws, or other restrictions which the City
cannot unilaterally alter. These principally include developer fees received for use on capital projects,
debt service requirements; redevelopment funds restricted to low and moderate income housing
purposes.

Unrestricted describes the portion of Net Assets which are not restricted as to use.

The City’'s fund balances are classified in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement Number 54 (GASB 54), Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions,
which requires the City to classify its fund balances based on spending constraints imposed on the use
of resources. For programs with multiple funding sources, the City prioritizes and expends funds in
the following order: Restricted, Committed, Assigned, and Unassigned. Each category in the following
hierarchy is ranked according to the degree of spending constraint:

Nonspendables represents balances set aside to indicate items do not represent available, spendable
resources even though they are a component of assets. Fund balances required to be maintained
intact, such as Permanent Funds, and assets not expected to be converted to cash, such as prepaids,
notes receivable, and land held for redevelopment are included. However, if proceeds realized from
the sale or collection of nonspendable assets are restricted, committed or assigned, then
Nonspendable amounts are required to be presented as a component of the applicable category.

Restricted fund balances have external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws,
regulations, or enabling legislation which requires the resources to be used only for a specific purpose.
Encumbrances and nonspendable amounts subject to restrictions are included along with spendable
resources.

Committed fund balances have constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council which may be
altered only by formal action of the City Council. Encumbrances and nonspendable amounts subject to
council commitments are included along with spendable resources.

Assigned fund balances are amounts constrained by the City’s intent to be used for a specific purpose,
but are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by the City Council or its designee and
may be changed at the discretion of the City Council or its designee. This category includes
encumbrances; Nonspendables, when it is the City’s intent to use proceeds or collections for a specific
purpose, and residual fund balances, if any, of Special Revenue, Capital Projects and Debt Service
Funds which have not been restricted or committed. This category includes encumbrances established
pursuant to the City’s purchasing policy which delegates the function to staff in certain circumstances.
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Unassigned fund balance represents residual amounts that have not been restricted, committed, or
assigned. This includes the residual general fund balance and residual fund deficits, if any, of other
governmental funds.

Detailed classifications of the City’'s Fund Balances, as of June 30, 2012, are below:

Special Revenue Capital Projects Other
General Concord Redevelopment General Governmental
Fund Balance Classifications Fund Housing Agency Projects Funds Total
Nonspendables:
ltems not in spendable form:
Notes Receivable $102 $102
Advance 2,112,573 2,112,573
Inventories 75,945 75,945
Total Nonspendable Fund Balances 2,188,620 2,188,620
Restricted for:
Debt Service $4,271,111 4,271,111
Housing $30,899,305 679,868 31,679,173
Transportation 4,833,098 4,833,098
Development Services 8,875,962 8,875,962
Total Restricted Fund Balances 30,899,305 18,660,039 49,559,344
Assigned to:
Measure Q Stability Reserve 7,002,959 7,002,959
Capital Projects 568,161 976,992 1,645,153
Total Assigned Fund Balances 7,571,120 976,992 8,548,112
Unassigned:
General fund 2,887,298 2,867,298
Other governmental fund deficit residuals ($882,168) (155,049) (1,037,217)
Total Unassigned Fund Balances 2,867,298 (882,168) (155,049) 1,830,081
Total Fund Balances $12,627,038 $30,899,305 ($882,168) $19,481,982 $62.126.157

The General Projects Fund had deficit fund balance of $882,168 which is expected to be eliminated by
future revenue.

The Assessment Districts Debt Service Fund had deficit fund balance of $155,049 which is expected to
be eliminated by future revenue.

The Successor Agency Private Purpose Trust Fund had deficit fund balance of $18,767,695 which is
expected to continue until the debt service obligations are satisfied from future property tax allocations.

Minimum Fund Balance Policy

To address financial uncertainties, the City’s pollcy is to maintain General Fund reserves and
contingencies to total not less than 15% of operating expenditures. Given the effects of the recession
which have affected all entities, both governmental and private, reserves have been used significantly
in the past three years. In accordance with the foresight of the City Council, the original requirement of
30% reserves and contingencies has been temporarily reduced to 15% with the admonition that a
return to 30% as soon as possible is desired.

As of June 30, 2012, the General Fund Fund Balance, excluding non-spendable assets, totaled $10.4
million, representing 15% of actual General Fund Operating Expenditures.
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Encumbrances

The City uses an encumbrance system as an extension of normal budgetary accounting for
governmental funds. Under this system, purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of applicable appropriations.
Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are recorded as restricted, committed or assigned fund
balance, depending on the classification of the resources to be used to liquidate the encumbrance,
since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities. Outstanding encumbrances at year-end are
automatically reappropriated for the following year. Unencumbered and unexpended appropriations
lapse at year-end. Encumbrances outstanding as of June 30, 2012 were as listed below:

Amount
Governmental Funds:
General Fund $519,185
General Projects Capital Projects Fund 3,325,429
State Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund 126,116
Maintenance District Special Revenue Fund 39,940
Traffic System Management Special Revenue Fund 10,626
Storm Water Management Special Revenue Fund 40,033
Special Developers Capital Projects Fund 69,924
Inter Governmental Capital Projects Fund 324,706
Total $4,455 959

Note 10 - CITY OF CONCORD RETIREMENT SYSTEM PLAN

Plan Description and Provisions

The Retirement System is a closed plan and is a single employer defined benefit pension plan covering
all full-time employees of the City retired prior to June 28, 1999 or who left the employment of the City
eligible for a pension. Participants are divided into two primary groups for coverage: general employees
and police employees. Membership in the Retirement System comprised the following at June 30,
2012:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 234
Vested terminated employees 54
Total participants 288

On July 1, 1994 the City converted to the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) as described
in Note 12.

Eligibility, administration, actuarial interest rates and certain other tasks are the responsibility of the
Retirement Board. The Retirement Board consists of ten members, selected as follows: the Mayor, City
Manager, City Attorney, Director of Human Resources, Director of Finance and one representative
from each of the five employee organizations.

During the year ended June 30, 1999 $56,300,000 was transferred from the Retirement System to
PERS to purchase prior years’ service credit for its active vested employees.
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The Retirement System provides retirement and death benefits for general and police employees as
well as disability benefits for police employees. General employees are eligible for retirement benefits
at age 50, provided the employee has completed 20 years of service or has accumulated contributions
in excess of $500 and was employed before June 30, 1990 or has completed 5 years of service and
was terminated after July 1, 1991. Sworn police employees are eligible for retirement at age 50,
provided the employee has completed 20 years of service or has accumulated contributions exceeding
$500. Retirement benefits are determined based on the employee’s length of service, highest one-year
compensation upon retirement, and age at retirement.

Funding Status and Progress

The actuarial accrued liability was determined as part of an actuarial valuation at June 30, 2010.
Significant actuarial assumptions used in determining the actuarial accrued liability include: (a) a rate of
return on the investment of present and future assets of 6.5% per year compounded annually, (b) inflation
rate of 3.5% (c) annual post-retirement increases at 2% per year. Required contributions are determined
using the entry age normal actuarial cost method and are made on a level dollar basis. The plan is
amortized using the CalPERS Mortality Table on a 24 year closed basis.

For actuarial purposes, the value of the Plan’s assets was determined to be fair value.

Audited annual financial statements and ten-year trend information are available from City of Concord,
1950 Parkside Drive, Concord, CA 94519.

Contribution Requirements and Contributions Made

Prior to June 21, 1993 (see Note 12) contributions were made to the Retirement System by both the
City and the employee participants. City contributions were actuarially determined annually to provide the
Retirement System with assets sufficient to pay basic benefits not provided for by employees’
contributions. All general employees were required to contribute 6%, and all police employees were
required to contribute 8% of their base salary (decreased by a Social Security allowance) to the
Retirement System. The City is funding the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability with an additional 1%
contribution of eligible employee salaries.

The City contributed 4% to 8% of this percentage on behalf of general employees, depending upon job
classification, and all of the contribution for sworn police employees.

The City maintains a program of death and disability benefits financed wholly by employer premium
payments under a group term life insurance policy and group long-term disability insurance policy.

Generally accepted accounting principles permit contributions to be treated as Pension assets and
deducted from the Actuarial Accrued Liability when such contributions are placed in an irrevocable trust
or equivalent arrangement. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the City has calculated and
recorded the Net Pension Obligation, representing the difference between the ARC and contributions,
as presented below:

Percentage
Annual Actual of Annual Net
Pension Employer Pension Cost Pension
Fiscal Year Cost Contribution Contributed Obligation
6/30/2010 $2,385,555 $1,312,385 55% $2,104,275
6/30/2011 1,748,164 287,623 16% 3,564,816
6/30/2012 1,744,637 863,610 50% 4,445,843
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The City’s Net Pension Obligation (NPO) is recorded in the Statement of Net Assets and is calculated
as follows:

Annual required contribution (ARC) $1,810,295
Interest on Net Pension Obligation 132,739
Adjustment to annual required contribution (198,397)

Annual Pension Cost 1,744,637

Contributions made:

City portions of current year premiums paid (863,610)
Total contributions (863,610)
Change in Net Pension Obligation 881,027
Net Pension Obligation at June 30, 2011 3,564,816
Net Pension Obligation at June 30, 2012 $4,445,843

Trend Information

Trend information gives an indication of the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay
benefits when due and an indication of whether all required contributions have been made.
Assumptions used to compile data presented below are the same as those described above. The
actuarial value of the Plan’s assets was determined to be its fair value.

Schedule of funding status is as follows (in thousands):

Actuarial Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Annual {Overfunded)
Valuation Value Liability Percentage (Overfunded) Cowered AAL Cowered
Date of Assets (AAL) AAL Funded AAL Payroll Payroll
2005 $51,593 $69,185 74.57% $17,211 *N/A *N/A
2007 51,199 83,912 61.02% 32,713 *N/A *N/A
2010 43,596 65,271 66.79% 21,675 *N/A *N/A

*Plan was closed in 1993, therefore there is no covered payroll
Mote 11 - CITY OF CONCORD EARLY RETIREMENT PLANS

Plan Description and Provisions

On September 1, 2009 the City adopted a sole employer defined benefit plan to provide supplemental
retirement benefit payments to eligible employees in addition to the benefit payments the employees
will receive from the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS).

The City joined Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS) and participates in two plans, the
Supplementary Retirement Plan and the Excess Benefit Plan. The Excess Benefit Plan consists of the
highly compensated members and the Supplementary Plan includes all other eligible employees. To be
.eligible to participate in the plan the employee must have been classified as a Miscellaneous or Safety
employee of the City as of June 1, 2009, be at least 50 years of age as of September 1, 2009, have
completed as least 5 years of employment with the City as of September 1, 2009, have terminated
employment with the City on or before August 31, 2009, have applied for benefits under this plan and
must have concurrently retired under CalPERS on or before September 1, 2009 and remains in retired
status under CalPERS. A member is considered fully vested upon meeting the eligibility requirements
listed above. Benefits payments are based on seven percent of an employee’s annual base pay as of
June 1, 2009.
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As of June 30, 2012, there were 65 members participating in these plans.

Audited annual financial statements and ten-year trend information are available from City of Concord,
1950 Parkside Drive, Concord, CA 94519.

Contribution Requirements

The City established a plan within the PARS Trust. The cost of funding the Plan including
management fees is roughly equivalent to one year of an employee’s salary for each participating
employee. The City has been funding the Plan over a period of 5 years, choosing to buy annuities to
fund the Plan, self fund, or use some combination of both. The City is using general fund salary
savings to fund the Plan. At this time, staff proposes to assume a 5-year funding schedule with the
first year being self-funded.

NOTE 12 - PENSION PLAN

CalPERS Safety and Miscellaneous Employees Pension Plans

On June 21, 1993 the City joined the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS), an
agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system which acts as a common investment and
administrative agent for participating member employers.

The City joined PERS on a prospective basis and participates in two plans, the Safety (Police)
Employees Plan and the Miscellaneous Employees Plan. All qualified permanent and probationary
employees are eligible to participate. CalPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of
living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.
The City's employees participate in the separate Safety (police) and Miscellaneous (all other) Employee
Plans. Benefit provisions under both Plans are established by State statute and City resolution. Benefits
are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Funding contributions
for both Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS; the City must
contribute these amounts.

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2012, are summarized as follows:

SAFETY MISCELLANEOUS
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 50
Monthly benefits, as a % of annual salary 3% 2-2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 9% 8%
Required employer contribution rates 28.822% 18.775%
Actuarially required contributions $6,525,699 34,096,666

The City’s policy and labor contracts require the City to pay all PERS contributions for sworn safety
employees (Police) and 4%-8% for miscellaneous employees.
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CalPERS determines contribution requirements using a modification of the Entry Age Normal Method.
Under this method, the City’s total normal benefit cost for each employee from date of hire to date of
retirement is expressed as a level percentage of the related total payroll cost. Normal benefit cost
under this method is the level amount the City must pay annually to fund an employee’s projected
retirement benefit. This level percentage of payroll method is used to amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities. The actuarial assumptions used to compute contribution requirements are also used to
compute the actuarial accrued liability. The City does not have a net pension obligation since it pays
these actuarially required contributions monthly. Annual Pension Costs, representing the payment of all
contributions required by CALPERS, for the last three fiscal years were as follows:

Annual Percentage Net
Fiscal Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed  Obligation
Safety Plan
June 30, 2010 $5,610,202 100% $0
June 30, 2011 5,689,172 100% 0
June 30, 2012 6,525,699 100% 0
Miscellaneous Plan
June 30, 2010 $4,280,938 100% $0
June 30, 2011 3,863,366 100% 0
June 30, 2012 4,096,666 100% 0

CalPERS uses the market related value method of valuing the Plan’s assets. An investment rate of
return of 7.75% is assumed, including inflation at 3.00%. Annual salary increases are assumed to vary
by duration of service and range from 3.55% to 14.45%. Changes in liability due to plan amendments,
changes in actuarial assumptions, or changes in actuarial methods are amortized as a level percentage
of payroll on a rolling thirty year basis. Investment gains and losses are accumulated as they are
realized and approximately seven percent of the net balance is amortized annually. :

The schedule of funding progress presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value
of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
The Plans’ actuarial value (which differs from market value) and funding progress over the most
recently available past three years, are set forth below at their actuarial valuation date of June 30:
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Safety Plan:
Actuarial
Entry Age Unfunded Annual Unfunded
Valuation Accrued Value of (Overfunded) Funded Cowered (Overfunded)
Date Liability Asset Liability Ratio Payroll as % of Payroll
2008 $122,528,175 $98,582,205 $23,946,970 80.5% $16,275,513 147 1%
2009 138,664,961 106,195,024 32,469,937 76.6% 17,453,149 186.0%
2010 152,020,183 113,789,847 38,230,336 74.9% 17,036,194 224 4%
Miscellaneous Plan:
Actuarial
Entry Age Unfunded Annual Unfunded
Valuation Accrued Value of (Overfunded) Funded Covered (Overfunded)
Date Liability Asset Liability Ratio Payroll as % of Payroll
2008 $125,880,536 $106,792,527 $19,088,009 84.8% $23,538,205 81.1%
2009 142,753,938 113,571,126 29,182,812 79.6% 23,623,292 123.5%
2010 153,962,951 118,689,771 35,273,180 771% 18,023,583 195.7%

Audited annual financial statements and ten-year trend information are available from CalPERS at P.Q.
Box 942709, Sacramento, CA 94229-2709.

PERS has reported that the value of the net assets in the plans held for pension benefits changed as
follows during the year ended June 30, 2010, the most recent available:

2010

Safety Miscellaneous
Beginning Balance $77,557 583 $82,651,417
Receivables for Sernvice Buybacks (6,919) (22,097)
Contributions Received 5,728,936 5,558,986
Benefits and Refunds Paid (4,674,794) (7,290,249)
Transfers and Miscellaneous Adjustments (357) (2,585)
Investment Return 11,084,239 11,844,669
Expected Actuarial Value of Assets $80,688,688 $92,740,141
Market Value of Assets $89,688,688 $92,740,140

Actuarial Value of Assets

$113,789,847

$118,689,771

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, the City transferred $56,300,000 from the Concord
Retirement System to PERS to purchase prior years’ service credit for its active vested employees.
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Social Security

The Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1990 (OBRA) mandates that public sector employees who
are not members of their employer’s existing system as of January 1, 1992 be covered by either Social
Security or an alternative plan.

All of the City’s employees are covered under Social Security, which requires these employees and the
City to each contribute 6.2% of the employees’ pay. Total contributions to Social Security during the
year ended June 30, 2012 amounted to $3.4 million of which the City paid half.

NOTE 13 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT HEATH CARE BENEFITS

Substantially all full-time City employees and their eligible dependents are eligible for post-retirement
health care benefits under single employer CalPERS sponsored health plans currently funded during
the employees active service. During fiscal year 2008, the City implemented the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This Statement establishes uniform
financial reporting standards for employers providing postemployment benefits other than pensions
(OPEB). Required disclosures are presented below.

By Council resolution and through agreements with its labor units, the City provides certain health care
benefits for retired employees (spouse and dependents are not included) under third-party insurance
plans. A summary of eligibility and retiree contribution requirements are shown below by bargaining
unit:

The City pays health insurance premiums up to $572, $1,143, $1,486 for a retiree, couple, and family,
respectively.

As of June 30, 2012, approximately 379 participants were receiving benefits.

Funding Policy and Actuarial Assumptions

The annual required contribution (ARC) was determined as part of a June 30, 2008 actuarial valuation
using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. This is a projected benefit cost method, which takes
into account those benefits that are expected to be earned in the future as well as those already
accrued. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.75% investment rate of return including 3%
inflation, (b) 3.25% projected annual salary increase, and (c) 4.5% health care costs inflation
increases. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that smooth the effects of
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. Actuarial
calculations reflect a long-term perspective and actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially
determined amounts are subject to revision at least biannually as results are compared to past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Calculations are based on the OPEB
benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan in effect at the time of each valuation and on
the pattern of sharing of costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The City’s OPEB
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll using
a 30 year closed amortization period.

In accordance with the City’s budget, the annual required contribution (ARC) is to be funded through
out the year as a percentage of payroll. Concurrent with implementing Statement No. 45, the City
Council passed a resolution to participate the California Employers Retirees Benefit Trust (CERBT), an
irrevocable trust established to fund OPEB. CERBT is administrated by CalPERS, and is managed by
an appointed board not under the control of City Council. This Trust is not considered a component unit
by the City and has been excluded from these financial statements. Separately issued financial
statements for CERBT may be obtained from CALPERS at P.Q. Box 942709, Sacramento, CA 94229-
2709.
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Funding Progress and Funded Status

Generally accepted accounting principles permits contributions to be treated as OPEB assets and
deducted from the Actuarial Accrued Liability when such contributions are placed in an irrevocable trust
or equivalent arrangement. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the City contributed
$3,196,020 to the Plan which represented 10.04% of $31,832,000 million of covered payroll, including
additional funds to CERBT. As a result, the City has recorded the Net OPEB Asset, representing the
difference between the ARC, the amortization of the Net OPEB Asset and actual contributions, as
presented below:

Annual required contribution (ARC) $4,232,000
Interest on Net OPEB asset 565,047

Adjustment to annual required contribution (758,543)
Annual OPEB cost 4,038,504
Contributions made;
City portions of current year premiums paid 3,196,020
Total contributions 3,196,020
Change in Net OPEB Asset (842,484)
Net OPEE Asset at June 30, 2011 8,598,003
Net OPEB Asset at June 30, 2012 $7,755,519

The actuarial accrued liability (AAL) representing the present value of future benefits, included in the
actuarial study dated June 30, 2010, amounted to $53,678,000 million and was unfunded since no assets
had been transferred into CERBT as of that date. However, as of June 30, 2012, the City’s investment
with CERBT along with investment income totaled $19,099,521 and reduced the unfunded actuarial
accrued liability.

The Plan’s annual OPEB cost and actual contributions for fiscal years ended June 30, 2010, 2011 and
2012 are set forth below:

Percentage
Annual of Annual Net
OPEB Actual OPEB Cost OPEB
Fiscal Year Cost Contribution Contributed Asset
6/30/2010 $4,513,591 $2,841,256 83% $7,844,3388
6/30/2011 3,917,386 4,671,001 119% 8,598,003
6/30/2012 4,038,504 3,196,020 79% 7,755,519
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The Schedule of Funding Progress presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for
benefits. Trend data from the actuarial studies is presented below:

Unfunded
Entry Age Unfunded Actuarial
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Liability as
Actuarial Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date (A (B) (B-A) (A/B) (C) [(B—A)IC]
6/30/2006 $48,085,000 $48,085,000 $36,741,000 131%
6/30/2008 $11,964,000 53,927,000 41,963,000 22.19% 34,281,000 122%
6/30/2010 15,418,000 49,254,000 33,836,000 31.30% 30,830,000 110%

NOTE 14 — DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

City employees may defer a portion of their compensation under City sponsored Deferred
Compensation Plans created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457 and 401K. Under
these plans, participants are not taxed on the deferred portion of their compensation until distributed to
them; distribution may be made only at termination, retirement, death or in an emergency as defined by
the Plans.

The laws governing deferred compensation plan assets require plan assets to be held by a Trust for
the exclusive benefit of Plan participants and their beneficiaries. Since the assets held under these
plans are not the City's property and are not subject to City control, they have been excluded from
these financial statements.

NOTE 15 — RISK MANAGEMENT AND INSURANCE

Insurance Risk Pool

In July 2003, the City joined the California State Association of Counties - Excess Insurance Authority
(CSAC-EIA), a joint powers authority. CSAC-EIA provides coverage against the following types of loss
risks, including commercial insurance coverage, under the terms of a joint-powers agreement with the
City and several other cities and governmental agencies as follows:

Type of Coverage (Deductible) Coverage Limits
General Liability ($500,000) $25,000,000
Workers' Compensation ($500,000) Statutory
All Risk Property $610,000,000

($10,000 per occurrence)

Property Flood Risk $602,500,000
($10,000 per occurrence)

Earthquake (5% with a $100,000 minimum) $25,000,000

CSAC-EIA was established for the purpose of creating a risk management pool for all California public
entities. CSAC-EIA is govemed by a Board of Directors consisting of representatives of its member
public entities.
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The City's deposits with CSAC-EIA are in accordance with formulas established by CSAC-EIA. Actual
surpluses or losses are shared according to a formula developed from overall loss costs and spread to
member entities on a percentage basis after a retrospective rating.

Audited financial statements for CSAC-EIA are available from CSAC-EIA at 75 Iron Point Circle,
Folsom, CA 95630.

The City is self-insured for auto physical damage claims.

For the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the amount of settlements did not exceed
insurance coverage.

Uninsured Claims Payable

The City provides for the uninsured portion of claims and judgments in its Risk Management (general
liability and auto physical damage) and Workers’ Compensation Internal Service Funds. Claims and
judgments, including a provision for claims incurred but not reported, are recorded when a loss is
deemed probable of assertion and the amount of the loss is reasonably determinable.

The City’s liability for uninsured claims is limited to worker’'s compensation, general liability and auto
physical damage claims, as discussed above, which are reported at their present value using expected
future investment yield assumptions ranging from 3% percent. In addition, the general liability claims
are based on an eighty percent confidence level. The undiscounted worker's compensation claims
totaled $9,370,000 and undiscounted general liability claims totaled $1,184,528 at June 30, 2012.

The change in the claims liabilities, including claims incurred but not reported are based on independent
actuarial studies and were computed as follows for the years ended June 30:

WORKERS RISK
COMPENSATION MANAGEMENT/
INTERNAL SERVICE LIABILITY INTERNAL TOTAL TOTAL
FUND SERVICE FUND 2012 2011

Beginning balance $7.253,000 $1,700,925 $8,953,925 $8,929,287
Liability for current fiscal year claims 280,332 280,332 734,238
Change in liability for prior fiscal year claims and

claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) 1,555,071 (23,126) 1,531,945 4,033,634
Claims paid (1,550,403) (193,755) (1,744,158) (4,743,234)
Ending balance $7,538,000 $1,484,044 $9,022,044 $8,953,925
Current portion $1,399,145 $1,092,184 $2,491,329 $2,700,450
Health Care

The City provides its employees with a choice of five different medical insurance plans through
CalPERS. The City pays the premium up to $1,587 per month per employee. The City also provides its
employees with Dental Insurance paying premiums up to $195 per month per employee. The City also
provides long-term disability and life insurance to its employees.
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NOTE 16 — JOINT VENTURE

Salvio Grant Land Joint Yenture

The Salvio Grant Land Joint Venture was formed in 1985 as an equal partnership by the
Redevelopment Agency and a local non-profit corporation to lease certain land for low-income/elderly
housing. The Heritage Building was constructed on that land by Plaza Towers Associates, which
leases the land from the Partnership under a lease which terminates in 2040.

The Joint Venture financial statements for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 reported revenue
of $189,661 and no debt obligations. On February 1, 2012, the partnership equity transferred to the
City as Housing Successor Agency. The City’s equity in the partnership at June 30, 2012 was
$1,919,376. Financial statements for the Partnership can be obtained from the City of Concord, 1950
Parkside Drive, Concord, CA 94519.

NOTE 17 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCY

The City is subject to litigation arising in the normal course of business. In the opinion of the City
Attorney there is no additional pending litigation, which is likely to have material adverse effect on the
" financial position of the City.

The City participates in several Federal and State grant programs. These programs have been audited
through the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 by the City’'s independent accountants in accordance with
the provisions of the Federal Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and applicable State requirements.
No cost disallowances were proposed as a result of these audits; however, these programs are still
subject to further examination by the grantors and the amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time. The City expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 18 — REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY DISSOLUTION AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY ACTIVITIES

Redevelopment Dissolution

In an effort to balance its budget, the State of California adopted ABx1 26 on June 28, 2011, amended
by AB1484 on June 27, 2012, which suspended all new redevelopment activities except for limited
specified activities as of that date and dissolved redevelopment agencies on January 31, 2012.

The suspension provisions prohibited all redevelopment agencies from a wide range of activities,
including incurring new indebtedness or obligations, entering into or modifying agreements or
contracts, acquiring or disposing of real property, taking actions to adopt or amend redevelopment
plans and other similar actions, except actions required by law or to carry out existing enforceable
obligations, as defined in ABx1 26.

ABx1 26 and AB1484 created three regulatory authorities, the Successor Agency Oversight Board,
State Controller and Department of Finance (DOF), to review former Agency’'s asset transfer,
obligation payments and wind down activities. ABx1 26 specifically directs the State Controller to
review the activities of all redevelopment agencies to determine whether an asset transfer between an
agency and any public agency occurred on or after January 1, 2011. If an asset transfer did occur and
the public agency that received the asset is not contractually committed to a third party for the
expenditure or encumbrance of the asset, the legislation purports to require the State Controller to
order the asset returned to the Redevelopment Agency or, on or after February 1, 2012, to the
Successor Agency.
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Effective January 31, 2012, the Redevelopment Agency was dissolved. Certain assets of the
Redevelopment Agency Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund were distributed to a Housing
Successor; and all remaining Redevelopment Agency assets and liabilities were distributed to a
Successor Agency.

Under the provisions of AB 1484, the City can elect to become the Housing Successor and retain the
housing assets. The City elected to become the Housing Successor and on February 1, 2012, certain
housing assets were transferred to the City’s Concord Housing Fund, a special revenue fund.

The activities of the Housing Successor are reported in the Concord Housing Special Revenue Fund
as the City has control of those assets, which may be used in accordance with the low and moderate
income housing provisions of California Redevelopment Law.

The City also elected to become the Successor Agency and on February 1, 2012 the Redevelopment
Agency’s remaining assets were distributed to and liabilities were assumed by the Successor Agency.
ABx1 26 requires the establishment of an Oversight Board to oversee the activities of the Successor
Agency and one was established in April 2012. The activities of the Successor Agency are subject to
review and approval of the Oversight Board, which is comprised of seven members, including one City
employee appointed by the Mayor.

The activities of the Successor Agency are reported in the Successor Agency Private-Purpose Trust
Fund as the activities are under the control of the Oversight Board. The City provides administrative
services to the Successor Agency to wind down the affairs of the former Redevelopment Agency.

A summary of the Redevelopment Agency’s assets distributed to and liabilities assumed by the
Successor Agency and Housing Successor as of January 31, 2012, reported as an Extraordinary Item,
is presented below:
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REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY DISSOLUTION

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Notes receivable, net of allowance

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Advance to other fund
Property held for resale
Investment in partnership
Capital assets:
Land
Construction in progress
Buildings, net of accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Interest payable
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Advance to other fund
Long-term debt:

Due in one year
Due in more than one year

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

Assets
and Transfer to Transfer to Ending
Liabilities Successor Housing Other Balance
(Prior to transfer) Agency Successor Adjustments January 31, 2012
$17.683.476 $17,683,476
4,232,108 4,232,108
8,702 8,702
6,755 6,755
22,884,305 708,017 $22,176,288
44,815,346 22,639,058 22,176,288
12,495,937 12,495,937
11,416,332 11,416,332
1,729,715 1,729,715
448,293 448,293
36,342 36,342
18,148,249 18,148,249
44,274,868 30,049,216 14,225,652
89,090,214 52,688,274 36,401,940
1,015,410 934,857 80,553
415,483 415,483
5,899,239 5,612,889 $286,350 (A)
7,330,132 1,350,340 5,693,442 286,350
9,495,937 9,495,937
4,885,000 4,885,000
57,255,842 57,255,842
71,636,779 71,636,779
78,966,911 72,987,119 5,693,442 286,350
310,123,303 ($20,298,845) $30,708,498 ($286,350)

(A) The Successor Agency uses full-accrual accounting, therefore deferred revenue is eliminated

The following notes provide more information regarding assets and liabilities of the Successor Agency.
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Loans Receivable

The Successor Agency assumed the non-housing loans receivable of the Redevelopment Agency as
of February 1, 2012. The Redevelopment Agency engaged in programs designed to encourage
construction of, or improvement to, low-to-moderate income housing. Under these programs, grants or
loans were provided under favorable terms to homeowners or developers who agreed to expend these
funds in accordance with the Agency's terms. The balances of the notes receivable arising from the
non-housing programs at June 30, 2012 are set forth below:

Concord Residential Club $530,150
California Automotive Retailing Development Agreement 185,420
Total loans and notes receivable $715,570

Concord Residential Club

Low and no interest loans were made by the Redevelopment Agency to provide businesses assistance
for rehabilitating buildings in the downtown area and to businesses or individuals for the rehabilitation
of housing within the City of Concord owned and/or occupied by persons of low and moderate income.

California Automotive Retailing Group Development Agreement

In July 2009 the Agency entered into a $250,000 interest free loan agreement with California
Automotive Retailing Group to rehabilitate and improve an existing automotive dealership site at 1330
Concord Avenue. Monthly payments of $2,083 for 120 months started on October 1, 2009. The Agency
expects the loan to be repaid on September 1, 2019.

Capital Assets

The Successor Agency assumed the capital assets of the Redevelopment Agency as of February
2012.

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not
available. Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date
contributed. The Successor Agency’s policy is to capitalize all assets with costs exceeding certain
minimum thresholds and with useful lives exceeding two years.

The Successor Agency has recorded all its public domain (infrastructure) capital assets, which include
landscape, storm, street, and traffic systems.

The purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets equitably among all users over the
life of these assets. The amount charged to depreciation expense each year represents that year’s pro
rata share of the cost of capital assets.

Depreciation of capital assets in service is provided using the straight line method which means the
cost of the asset is divided by its expected useful life in years and the result is charged to expense
each year until the asset is fully depreciated. The Successor Agency has assigned 25-33 years for the
useful lives of buildings and structures. ‘

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
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Capital Asset Additions, Retirements and Balances

Transfer From

Redevelopment Agency Balance at
February 1, 2012 Additions June 30, 2012
Fiduciary Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $448,293 $448,293
Construction in progress 36,342 $520 36,862
Total capital assets not being depreciated 484,635 520 485,155
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and structures 30,827,102 30,827,102
Streets 231,824 231,824
Sidewalks 227,377 227,377
Less: depreciation (12,678,853) (385,339) (13,064,192)
Total capital assets being depreciated 18,148,249 (385,339) 18,222 111
Governmental activity capital assets, net $18,632,884 ($384,819) $18,707,266

Long-Term Debt

The Successor Agency assumed the long-term debt of the Redevelopment Agency as of February 2012.
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Current Year Transactions and Balances

The Successor Agency's debt issues and transactions are summarized below and discussed in detail
thereafter.

Transfer from
Original Redevelopment
Principal Agency as of Balance as of Current
Amount February 1, 2012 Retirements June 30, 2012 Portion
2004 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds
3.9-5.05%, due 07/01/25 $72,310,000 $53,370,000 $53,370,000 $3,985,000
Less deferred amount on refunding (1,776,158) (1,776,158)
Total Tax Allocation Bonds 51,593,842 51,593,842 3,985,000
Revenue Bonds:
Police Facilities, 2.70- 5.25%,
due 08/01/13 9,700,000 950,000 950,000 465,000
Parking Garage, 4.0-5.13%
due 03/01/23 9,580,000 6,530,000 $415,000 6,115,000 435,000
Total Revenue Bonds 7,480,000 415,000 7,065,000 900,000
Loan Payable:
Housing Successor Loan 9,495,937 9,495,937 9,495,937
due 06/30/2019
Refunding l.ease Agreement;
3.6%, due 09/01/2019 3,116,000 3,067,000 3,067,000
Total Governmental Activify Debt $71,636,779 $415,000 $71,221,779 $4,885,000

Tax Allocation Bonds (TABs) Outstanding

Tax Allocation Bonds were issued in 2004 by the Redevelopment Agency to defease and retire the
1988 Current Interest Term Bonds, 1993 Senior Current Interest Term Bonds, and the 1993
Subordinate Term Bonds. Interest payments on the 2004 TABs are payable semi-annually on January
1 and July 1. The 2004 TABs are special obligations of the Agency and are secured by the Agency’s
tax increment revenues. With the dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency discussed above, Tax
Increment is no longer distributed, and instead the Successor Agency receives payments from the
County’s Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (RPTTF) that are to be used to fund debt service on
the Bonds, with no distinction between housing and non-housing revenues. In addition, under the
provisions of the laws dissolving the Redevelopment Agency, the Successor Agency only receives the
funds necessary to fulfill its approved obligations. The TABs are secured by a surety bond issued by
AMBAC Assurance which declared bankruptcy in November 2010. The Agency has not obtained a
replacement surety as of June 30, 2012.

The pledge of future tax increment revenues ends upon repayment of the $69,493,551 in remaining
debt service on the Agency’s Tax Allocation Bonds which is scheduled to occur in 2026. As disclosed
in the originating offering documents, pledged future tax increment revenues are expected to provide
coverage over debt service of 1.63 over the life of the long term debt. For fiscal year 2012 tax
increment revenues and RPTTF amounted to $12,241,940 which represented coverage of 1.93 over
the $6,348,672 in debt service.
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Police Facilities and Parking Garage Revenue Bonds

The former Redevelopment Agency constructed police facilities and a three-level, 432-space parking
structure, which are leased from the City. Revenues from these leases totaled $566,450 in fiscal 2012.
The Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority loaned the former Redevelopment Agency $19,280,000
to construct these facilities. With the dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency discussed above, Tax
Increment is no longer distributed, and instead the Successor Agency receives payments from the
County's Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (RPTTF) that are to be used to fund debt service on
the Bonds, with no distinction between housing and non-housing revenues. In addition, under the
provisions of the laws dissolving the Redevelopment Agency, the Successor Agency only receives the
funds necessary to fulfill its approved obligations. The City's Police Facilities Revenue Bonds and
Parking Structure Revenue Bonds Debt Service Funds have been transferred to the Successor Agency.

Housing Successor Loan Payable

Beginning in 1986, the Redevelopment Agency’s General Capital Projects Fund has been required by
the State to set aside 20% of property tax increments for low and moderate income housing. However,
under a transition rule, the Agency’s General Capital Projects Fund has been allowed to use these set-
asides for current capital projects as long as it had a written plan for repaying these amounts to the
Low and Moderate Income Housing Special Revenue Fund. At June 30, 2012 the amount due that
Fund under the repayment plan totaled $9,495,937. The advance does not bear interest.

The above loan had previously been reported as an interfund advance within the Redevelopment
Agency, but with the transfer of the Redevelopment Agency’s liabilities to the Successor Agency, the
advance is now reported as long-term debt of the Successor Agency. This loan was originally required
to be repaid by June 30, 2019, however repayment is now subject to the provisions of Health and
Safety Code Section 34176 and can not begin prior to fiscal year 2014.

Refunding Lease Agreement

On June 24, 2010 the Redevelopment Agency entered into a Refunding Lease Agreement in the amount
of $3,116,000. The proceeds from the Agreement were used to retire a portion of the outstanding 1993
Lease Revenue Bonds and to fully repay the 1999 Judgment Obligation Bonds. The Agreement bears
interest at 3.6% and is due semi-annually on March 1 and September 1. Principal payments are due
annually on September 1 until September 1, 2019.
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Debt Service Requirements

Annual debt service requirements are shown below for long-term debt except the Housing Successor
Loan Payable because the ultimate repayment terms cannot be determined at this time as discussed
above:

For the Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest
2013 $4,885,000 $2,812,319
2014 5,080,000 2,604,770
2015 5,258,000 2,390,344
2016 5,472,500 2,162,192
2017 5,706,500 1,915,427

2018 - 2022 24,980,000 5,656,525
2023 - 2026 12,120,000 1,214,208
Total 63,502,000 $18,755,785

Reconciliation of long-term debt:
Less unamortized deferred amount
on refunding (1,776,158)

Total $61,725,842

Commitments and Contingencies

State Approval of Enforceable Obligations

The Successor Agency prepares a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) semi-annually
that contains all proposed expenditures for the subsequent six-month period. The ROPS is subject to
the review and approval of the Oversight Board as well as the State Department of Finance. Although
the State Department of Finance may not question items included on the ROPS in one period, they
may question the same items in a future period and disallow associated activities. The amount, if any,
of current obligations that may be denied by the State Department of Finance cannot be determined at
this time. The City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

State Asset Transfer Review

The activities of the former Redevelopment Agency and the Successor Agency are subject to further
examination by the State of California and the amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed
by the State cannot be determined at this time. In addition, the State Controller's Office will be
conducting a review of the propriety of asset transfers between the former Redevelopment Agency or
the Successor Agency and any public agency that occurred on or after January 1, 2011 and the
amount, if any, of assets that may be required to be returned to the Successor Agency cannot be
determined at this time. The City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 19 — SUBSEQUENT EVENT

2012 Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds

On September 18, 2012, the City issued Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 in the
original principal amount of $10,080,000 at interest rates that range from 1.50% to 4.00% to provide for
a refunding of the City’s outstanding 2004 Certificates of Participation Wastewater System
Improvement Bonds. Principal payments are due annually on February 1, with interest payments
payable semi-annually on August 1 and February 1 through February 1, 2029. Repayment of these
bonds is from a pledge of revenue from the Sewer Enterprise Fund.
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NON-MAJOR FUNDS

State Gas Tax Fund. To account for revenue apportioned to the City from State-collected gasoline
taxes and expended for construction and maintenance of City streets.

Maintenance Districts Fund. To account for revenue from property tax and annual assessments
against property owners and expended for their share of the City's cost for maintenance in the areas of
the service provided.

Art in Public Places Fund. To account for fees applied to new construction and expended for the
purchase and installation of art objects in the City.

Traffic System Management Fund. To account for monies from in-lieu parking fees, to be expended
for traffic management facilities.

Housing Assistance Program Fund. To account for monies from the Concord Redevelopment
Agency and developers' contributions to be expended for low-income housing loans.

Housing and Community Services Fund — To account for monies received from the Department of
Housing and Urban Development and expended for development of jobs and suitable housing for low-
income residents.

Storm Water Management Fund. To account for activities necessary to comply with the Federal
Clean Water Act.

Monument Community Partnership Fund. To account for capital projects resulting from the
partnership between the Contra Costa First 5 children and Monument community partnership.

Police Facilities Revenue Bonds Fund. To account for accumulation of property taxes for payment of
interest and principal on the Police Facility lease revenue bonds. (Transferred to Successor Agency)

Parking Structure Revenue Bonds Fund. To account for accumulation of property taxes for
payment of interest and principal on the Parking Structure lease revenue bonds. (Transferred to
Successor Agency)

ABAG Fund. To account for transfers of revenue from the General Fund for payment of interest and
principal on Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) certificates of participation.

Performing Arts Revenue Bonds Fund. To account for the accumulation of revenue provided by Bill
Graham Presents for payment of interest and principal on the Pavilion lease revenue bonds issued in
1995.

Assessment Districts Fund. To account for accumulation of special assessment taxes for payment of
special assessment bond interest and principal.

Refunding Lease Agreement Fund. To account for a lease agreement issued to refinance and retire
the Police Facilities Revenue Bonds and the Judgment Obligation Bonds. (Transferred to Successor
Agency)

Energy Lease Fund. To account for a lease agreement issued to finance several energy conservation
projects throughout the City.

Special Developers Fund. To account for capital projects within the City funded by various fees
collected from developers.

Inter-Governmental Capital Projects Fund. To account for approved capital projects funded from
other governmental agencies.
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ASSETS:

Cash and Investments

Cash with Fiscal Agents

Receivables, Net
Accounts Receivable
Due from Other Governments
Loans and Notes

Lease Receivable

Advances to Other Funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Accounts, Deposits and Contracts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Due to Other Funds
Deferred Revenue
Advance from Other Funds

Total Liabilities
Fund Balances:
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances (Deficit)

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2012

CITY OF CONCORD
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Artin Traffic Housing Housing
State Maintenance Public System Assistance and Community
Gas Tax Districts Places Management Program Services
$4,011,831 $3,895,898 $126,505 $97,531 $494.604 $2,469,445
1,954
349,427 67,624
197,184 2,500,636
397,500
$4,361,258 $3,895,898 $126,505 $495,031 $691,788 $5,039,659
$3,770 $6,346
19,421 $2,946 $181 413,629
11,739 2,288,260
397,500
23,191 400,446 11,920 2,708,235
4,338,067 3,495,452 $126,505 $495,031 679,868 2,331,424
4,338,067 3,495,452 126,505 495,031 679,868 2,331,424
$4,361,258 $3.895,898 $126,505 $495,031 $691,788 $5,039,659
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JUNE 30, 2012

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Storm Monument Performing
Water Community  Police Facilities Parking Structure Arts Assessment Refunding Lease Energy
Management Partnership  Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds ABAG Revenue Bonds Districts Agreement Lease
$2,868,839 $631,398
$65,644 750,045 $29
$27,114 $13,497
$2,868,839 $27,114 $65,644 $1,381,443 $13,497 $29
$36,752 $28,724
8,092
$27,114 139,822
44,844 27,114 168,546
2,823,995 $65,644 $1,381,443 $29
(155,049)
2,823,995 65,644 1,381,443 (155,049) 29
$2,868,839 $27,114 $65,644 $1,381,443 $13,497 $29
(Continued)
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ASSETS:

Cash and Investments

Cash with Fiscal Agents

Recelvables, Net
Accounts Receivable
Due from Other Governments
Loans and Notes

Lease Receivable

Advances to Other Funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Accounts, Deposits and Contracts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Due to Other Funds
Deferred Revenue
Advance from Other Funds

Fund Balances:
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances (Deficit)

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

CITY OF CONCORD
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS

JUNE 30, 2012

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Total
Non-Major
Special Inter- Governmental
Developers Governmental Funds

$2,151,678 $2,776,396 $19,524,125
815,718

149,550 779,144 871,259
1,520,275 1,837,326

2,697,820

397,500

$2,301,228 $5,075,815 $26,343,748
$41,597 $104,457 $221,646
616 2,297 447182
166,936

149,550 2,046,480 4,496,029
1,132,473 1,529,973
1,324,236 2,153,234 5,861,766
2,922 581 18,660,039

976,992 976,992
(155,049)

976,992 2,922,581 19,481,982
$2,301,228 $5,075,815 $26,343,748
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CITY OF CONCORD
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Artin Traffic Housing Housing
State Maintenance Public System Assistance and Community
(Gas Tax Districts Places Management  Program Services
REVENUES:
Taxes $1,654,879
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental $3,506,369 $703,193
Charges for Services $6,876
Use of Money and Property 59,657 53,712 $1,854 $24,713 245 31,243
Special Assessment Collections
Other 6,350 75,313
Total Revenues 3,566,026 1,608,591 1,854 24,713 13,471 809,749
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public Works 2,226,934 1,026,083
Community and Economic Development 12,110 23,227 20,993 152,805
Parks & Recreation Services 360,712
Public Safety 32,229
Capital Outlay 224,006 3,301
Debt Service:
Principal Repayment
Interest and Fiscal Charges 23,850
Bond Issuance Costs
Total Expenditures 2,463,050 1,049,933 23,227 20,993 549,047
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 1,102,976 558,658 1,854 1,486 (7,522) 260,702
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In
Transfers (Out) (128,582) {4,698) (27,398)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (128,582) (4,698) (27,398)
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Assets transferred to/liabilities assumed
by the Successor Agency
Net Changes in Fund Balances 1,102,976 430,078 1,854 (3,212) (7,522) 233,304
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) AT
AT THE BEGINNING OF PERIOD 3,235,091 3,065,376 124,651 498,243 687,390 2,098,120
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) AT END OF PERIOD $4,338,067 $3,495 452 $126,505 $495,031 $679,868 $2,331,424
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
Storm Monument Performing Refunding
Water Community  Police Facilites Parking Structure Arts Assessment Lease Energy
Management  Partnership  Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds ABAG Revenue Bonds Districts Agreement Lease
$2,043,252
$352,510
31,048 $27,587 $121,432 $508,692 $108 $108
11,621
2,074,300 352,510 27,587 121,432 508,692 11,729 108
624,704
696,684
352,510
1,745
440,000 95,000 560,000 $373,500 123,690
65,857 329,141 7,382 309,448 105,309 462,939
1,063
1,323,133 352,510 505,857 329,141 102,382 869,448 478,809 587,692
751,167 (478,270) (207,709) (102,382) (360,756) 11,729 (478,809) (587,584)
478,484 156,674 102,489 478,809 321,643
(431,300) (588)
(431,300) (588) 478,484 156,674 102,489 478,809 321,643
(197,556) (701,872)
319,867 (588) (197,342) (752,907) 107 (360,756) 11,729 (265,941)
2,504,128 588 197,342 752,907 65,537 1,742,199 (166,778) 265,970
$2,823,995 $65,644 $1,381,443 ($155,049) $29
(Continued)
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JUNE 30,2012

CITY OF CONCORD
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Total
Non-Major
Special Inter - Governmental
Developers Governmental Funds
REVENUES:
Taxes $3,598,131
Licenses and Permits $82,369 82,369
Intergovernmental $3,386,356 7,948,428
Charges for Services 6,876
Use of Money and Property 32,736 48,237 941,372
Special Assessment Collections 11,621
Other 6,285 87,948
121,390 3,434,593 12,676,745
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public Works 23,173 264,280 4,165,174
Community and Economic Development 5,341 142,128 1,053,288
Community & Recreation Services 43,683 22315 779,220
Public Safety 32,229
Capital Outlay 608,319 1,974,617 2,811,988
Debt Service:
Principal Repayment 1,592,190
Interest and Fiscal Charges 1,303,926
Bond Issuance Costs 1,063
Total Expenditures 680,516 2,403,340 11,739,078
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (559,126) 1,031,253 937,667
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In 4,662 15,360 1,558,121
Transfers (Out) (15,360) (5,212) (613,138)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (10,698) 10,148 944,983
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Assets transferred tofliabilities assumed
by the Successor Agency (899,428)
Net Changes in Fund Balances (569,824) 1,041,401 983,222
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) AT
AT THE BEGINNING OF PERIOD 1,546,816 1,881,180 18,498,760
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) AT END OF PERIOD $976,992 $2,922 581 $19,481,982
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CITY OF CONCORD
BUDGETED NON-MAJOR FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

STATE GAS TAX MAINTENANCE DISTRICTS
Variance Variance
Positive Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Property Taxes $1,469,797 $1,554,879 $856,082
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental $3,386,500 $3,506,369 $119,869
Charges for Current Services
Use of Money and Property 47,000 59,657 12,657 45,474 53,712 8,238
Special Assessment Collections
Other
Total Revenues 3,433,560 3,566,026 132,526 1,515,271 1,608,591 93,320
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public Works 2,140,623 2,226,934 (86,311) 1,336,172 1,026,083 310,089
Community and Economic Development 12,523 12,110 413
Parks & Recreation Services
Public Safety
Debt Service:
Principal Repayment
Interest and Fiscal Charges 23,850 (23,850)
Total Expenditures 2,153,146 2,239,044 (85,898) 1,336,172 1,049,933 286,239
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 1,280,354 1,326,982 46,628 179,099 558,658 379,559
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In 312,886 (312,886)
Transfers (Out) (366,578) 366,578 (651,542) (128,582) 522,960
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (366,578) 366,578 (338,656) (128,582) 210,074
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES 913,776 1,326,982 413,206 (159,557) 430,076 589,633
Adjustment to Budgetary Basis:
Extraordinary item
Capital Outlay (224,006)
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 3,235,091 3,235,091 3,065,376 3,065,376
Fund Balances at End of Year $4,148,867  $4,338,067 $413,206 $2,805,819 $3,495,452 $589,633
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JUNE 30, 2012

ART IN PUBLIC PLACES

TRAFFIC SYSTEM MANAGEMENT

HOUSING ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

Variance Variance Variance
Positive Positive Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative)
$2,750 $6,876 $4,126
$1,854 $1,854 $24,713 $24,713 7,500 245 (7,255)
6,350 6,350
1,854 1,854 24,713 24,713 10,250 13,471 3,221
$39,029 23,227 15,802 43,084 20,993 22,091
39,029 23,227 15,802 43,084 20,993 22,091
1,854 1,854 (39,029) 1,486 40,515 (32,834) (7,522) 25,312
103,350 (103,350)
(4,000) (4,698) (698)
99,350 (4,698) (104,048)
1,854 1,854 60,321 (3,212) (63,533) (32,834) (7,522) 25,312
124,651 124,651 498,243 498,243 687,390 687,390
$124,651 $126,505 $1,854 $558,564 $495,031 ($63,533) $654,556 $679,868 $25,312
(Continued)
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CITY OF CONCORD
BUDGETED NON-MAJOR FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

HOUSING AND COMMUNITY SERVICES STORM WATER MANAGEMENT
Variance Variance
Positive Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Property Taxes $1,959,330 $2,043,252 $83,922
Licenses and Permits $5,000 ($5,000)
Intergovernmental 1,015,517 $703,193 (312,324)
Charges for Current Services 75,000 (75,000)
Use of Money and Property 20,000 31,243 11,243 34,000 31,048 (2,952)
Special Assessment Collections
Other 5,856 75,313 69,457
Total Revenues 1,121,373 809,749 (311,624) 1,993,330 2,074,300 80,970
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public Works 714,211 624,704 89,507
Community and Economic Development 81,166 152,805 (71,639) 625,578 696,684 (71.1086)
Parks & Recreation Services 356,002 360,712 (4,710)
Public Safety 92,107 32,229 59,878
Debt Service:
Principal Repayment
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditures 529,275 545,746 (16,471) 1,339,789 1,321,388 18,401
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 592,098 264,003 (328,095) 653,541 752,912 99,371
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In
Transfers (Out) (25,739) (27,398) (1,659) (479,421) (431,300) 48,121
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (25,739) (27,398) (1,659) (479,421) (431,300) 48,121
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES 566,359 236,605 (329,754) 174,120 321,612 147,492
Adjustment to Budgetary Basis:
Extraordinary item
Capital QOutlay (3,301) (1,745)
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 2,098,120 2,098,120 2,504,128 2,504,128
Fund Balances at End of Year $2,664,479 $2,331,424 ($329,754) $2,678,248 $2,823,995 $147,492
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MONUMENT COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIP POLICE FACILITIES REVENUE BONDS PARKING STRUCTURE REVENUE BONDS
Variance Variance Variance
Positive Positive Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative)
$361,550 $352,510 ($9,040)
$27,587 $27,587 $121,432 $121,432
361,550 352,510 (9,040) 27,587 27,587 121,432 121,432
361,550 352,510 9,040
$440,000 440,000 415,000 415,000
69,425 65,857 3,568 331,641 329,141 2,500
361,550 352,510 9,040 509,425 505,857 3,568 746,641 329,141 417,500
(509,425) (478,270) 31,155 (746,641) (207,709) 538,932
509,425 478,484 (30,941) 746,641 156,674 (589,967)
(588) (588)
(588) (588) 509,425 478,484 (30,941) 746,641 156,674 (589,967)
(588) (588) ' 214 214 (51,035) (51,035)
(197,556) (701,872)
$588 588 197,342 197,342 752,907 752,907
$588 ($588) $197,342 $214 $752,907 ($51,035)
(Continued)

95



City oF CONCORD JUNE 30, 2012

CITY OF CONCORD
BUDGETED NON-MAJOR FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

ABAG PERFORMING ARTS REVENUE BONDS
Variance Variance
Positive Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Property Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Current Services
Use of Money and Property $5608,692 $508,692
Special Assessment Collections
Other
Total Revenues 508,692 508,692
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public Works
Community and Economic Development
Parks & Recreation Services
Public Safety
Debt Service:
Principal Repayment $95,000 95,000 560,000 560,000
Interest and Fiscal Charges 5,122 7,382 (2,260) 314,528 309,448 5,080
Total Expenditures 100,122 102,382 (2,260) 874,528 869,448 5,080
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (100,122) (102,382) (2,260) (874,528) (360,756) 513,772

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers [n 100,122 102,489 2,367 874,528 (874,528)
Transfers (Out)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 100,122 102,489 2,367 874,528 (874,528)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES 107 107 (360,756) (360,756)

Adjustment to Budgetary Basis:
Extraordinary item
Capital Outlay

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 65,537 65,537 1,742,199 1,742,199

Fund Balances at End of Year $65,537 365,644 $107 $1,742,199 $1,381,443 ($360,756)
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ASSESSMENT DISTRICTS

REFUNDING LEASE AGREEMENT

ENERGY LEASE

Variance Variance Variance

Positive Positive Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative)
3108 $108 $108 $108

11,621 $11,621
11,729 11,729 108 108
$373,500 $373,500 123,690 123,690

160,515 105,309 55,206 464,616 464,002 614

534,015 478,809 55,206 588,306 587,692 614

11,729 11,729 (534,015) (478,809) 55,208 (588,306) (587,584) 722
534,015 478,809 (55,206) 588,306 321,643 (266,663)
534,015 478,809 (55,206) 588,306 321,643 (266,663)

11,729 11,729 (265,941) (265,941)

(166,778) (166,778) 265,970 265,970

($166,778) ($155,049) $11,729 $265,970 $29 ($265,941)
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are used to finance and account for special activities and services performed by a
designated department for other departments in the City on a cost reimbursement basis.

The concept of major funds does not extend to internal service funds because they do not do business
with outside parties. GASB Statement 34 requires that for the Statement of Activities, the net revenues or
expenses of each internal service fund be eliminated by netting them against the operations of the other
City departments which generated them. The remaining balance sheet items are consolidated with these
same funds in the Statement of Net Assets.

However, internal service funds are still presented separately in the Fund financial statements, including
the funds below.

Worker’'s Compensation Fund. To account for workers' compensation expenses. This fund is
financed by fees charged to the City departments.

Risk Management/Liability Fund. To account for the non-reimbursable portion of insurance claims.

Post-Retirement HealthCare Benefit Fund. To account for the contributions and benefits paid in
relation to the Post-Retirement Health Care Program.

Fleet Maintenance/Replacement Fund. To accumulate resources to fund the replacement of City
licensed vehicles and motorized equipment.

Information Technology Replacement Fund. To accumulate resources to fund the replacement of
computers and software for City staff.

Building Maintenance Fund. To accumulate resources required to maintain City facilities.
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ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable
Interest Receivable
Prepaid Items

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets:

Advances to Other Funds

Net OPEB Asset

Capital Assets:
Buildings and Improvements
Equipment
Construction In Progress
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Net Capital Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Due to Other Funds
Compensated Absences Payable
Capital Lease Payable
Bond Interest Payable
Claims Payable

Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Compensated Absences Payable
Capital Lease Payable
Claims Payable
Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

CITY OF CONCORD

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012

Risk Post-Retirement Fleet Information
Workers' Management/ Healthcare Maintenance/ Technology
Compensation Liability Benefit Replacement Replacement
$7.343,378 $2,004,619 $2,825,474 $5,993,842
8,155 44,049
$1 2
97,874
7,351,533 2,004,619 1 2,869,523 6,091,718
2,000,000
7,755,519
8,613,076 11,492,910
127,722 529,098
(7,166,490) (8,887,928)
1,574,308 3,134,080
9,351,533 2,004,619 7,755,520 4,443,831 9,225,798
22,883
1,223 10,652 33,827
1,565,465
26,022 61,209
549,983
30,853
1,399,145 1,092,184
1,400,368 1,092,184 1,665,465 36,674 698,755
23,758 89,929
1,246,225
6,138,855 391,860
7,539,223 1,484,044 1,565,465 60,432 2,034,909
1,574,308 1,337,872
1,812,310 520,575 6,190,055 2,809,091 5,853,017
$1,812,310 $520,575 $6,190,055 $4,383,399 $7,190,889
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Building
Maintenance Total

$2,704,180 $20,871,493

52,204

4,640 4,643
97,874

2,708,820 21,026,214
2,000,000

7,755,519

42,184,419 42,184,419
20,105,986

507,388 1,164,208
(19,639,399) (35,693,817)
23,052,408 27,760,796
25,761,228 58,542,529
20,192 43,075
21,700 67,402
1,565,465

42,691 129,922
549,983

30,853

2,491,329

84,583 4,878,029
44,000 157,687
1,246,225

6,530,715

128,583 12,812,656
23,052,408 25,964,588
2,580,237 19,765,285
$25,632,645 $45,729,873
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JUNE 30, 2012

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services
Other
Total Operating Revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations and Maintenance
Cost of Sales and Services

Depreciation
Claims and Judgments

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Interest Income
Interest Expense
Gain (Loss) from Sale of Capital Assets
Total Non-Operating Revenue
Income (Loss) Before Contributions
Contributions
Transfers In

Transfers Out

Changes in Net Assets before
extraordinary items

EXTRAORDINARY ITEM
Assets transferred to/liabilities assumed
by the Successor Agency
Total Extraordinary item
Changes in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

CITY OF CONCORD

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Risk Post-Retirement Fleet Information
Workers' Management/ Healthcare Maintenance/ Technology
Compensation Liability Benefit Replacement Replacement
$3,092,675 $1,064,724 $2,831,479 $2,606,408 $4,266,198
22,010 57,716
3,092,675 1,064,724 2,853,489 2,664,124 4,266,198
403,425 698,879 2,457,472 1,730,858 4,711,748
1,646,037
546,343 1,164,782
1,550,403 (193,755)
1,953,828 505,124 4,103,509 2,277,201 5,876,530
1,138,847 559,600 (1,250,020) 386,923 (1,610,332)
20,374 29,838 56,439 68,291
(109,204)
76,037
20,374 29,838 132,476 (40,913)
1,159,221 589,438 (1,250,020) 519,399 (1,651,245)
87,909 97,923
100,000
(100,000) (423,603) (600,000}
1,059,221 265,835 (1,250,020) 7,308 (1,653,322)
1,059,221 265,835 (1,250,020) 7,308 (1,553,322)
753,089 254,740 7,440,075 4,376,091 8,744,211
$1,812,310 $520,575 $6,190,055 $4,383,399 $7,190,889
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Building
Maintenance Total

$3,255,955 $17,117,439
79,726

3,255,955 17,197,165
2,639,502 12,641,884
1,646,037

1,723,647 3,434,772
1,356,648

4,363,149 19,079,341
(1,107,194) (1,882,176)
11,316 186,258
(109,204)

76,037

11,316 153,091
(1,095,878) (1,729,085)
185,832

100,000
(671,187) (1,794,790)
(1,767,065) (3,238,043)

(18,148,249)

(18,148,249)

(18,148,249)

(18,148,249)

(19,915,314) (21,386,292)
45,547,959 67,116,165
$25,632,645 $45,729,873
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CITY OF CONCORD
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Risk Post-Retirement Fleet Information
Workers' Management/ Healthcare Maintenance/ Technology
Compensation Liability Benefit Replacement Replacement
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers $3,087,374 $1,064,724 $2,853,489 $2.627,900 $4,266,198
Payments to Suppliers (3,261,025) (1,205,977) (2,899,640)
Payments to Employees (68,596) (534,167) (1,726,135)
Claims Paid (1,602,618) (722,005)
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities 1,416,160 342,719 (407,536) 887,756 (359,577)
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANGING ACTIVITIES
Borrowings of Advances From/To Other Funds 227,001
Transfer In 100,000
Transfer Qut (100,000) (423,603) (600,000)
Cash Flows from (used for) Non-Capital Financing Activities (100,000) (323,603) 227,001 (600,000)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (1,096,921) (648,190)
Principal Paid on Debt, Bond Maturities (239,595)
Interest and Fiscal Charges Paid (83,536)
Cash Flows from (used for) Capital and Related
Financing Activities (1,096,921) (971,321)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received 20,374 29,838 136 56,439 73,193
Cash Flows from (used for) Investing Activities 20,374 29,838 136 56,439 73,193
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Equivalents 1,336,534 48,954 (180,399) (752,726) (1,257,705)
Cash and Investments at Beginning of Period 6,006,844 1,955,665 180,399 3,578,200 7,251,547
Cash and Investments at End of Period $7,343,378 $2,004,619 $2,825,474 $5,993,842
Reconciliation of Operating Income {Loss)
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss) $1,138,847 $559,600 ($1,250,020) $386,923 ($1,610,332)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation 546,343 1,164,782
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Receivables, Net (5,301) (36,224)
Prepaid Expenses 73,879
Net OPEB Asset 842 484
Accounts Payable 22,883
Accrued Liabilities (2,386) (9,286) (10,789)
Self Insurance Claims Payable 285,000 (216,881)
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities $1,416,160 $342,719 ($407,536) $887,756 ($359,577)
Non-cash Contributions and Transfers of Fixed Assets, Net $87,909 $97,923
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Building
Maintenance Total

$3,255,955 $17,155,640
(1,456,865) (8,823,507)
(1,210,493) (3,539,391)
(2,324,623)

588,597 2,468,119
227,001

100,000
(671,187) (1,794,790)
(671,187) (1,467,789)
(213,951) (1,959,062)
(239,595)
(83,536)
(213,951) (2,282,193)
8,364 188,344
8,364 188,344
(288,177) (1,093,519)
2,992,357 21,965,012
$2,704,180 $20,871,493

($1,107,194)

(31,882,176)

1,723,647 3,434,772
(41,525)

73,879

842,484

20,192 43,075
(48,048) (70,509)
68,119

$588,597 $2,468,119
($18,148,249) ($17,962,417)
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\M/

OIICOI'
STATISTICAL TABLES AND OTHER SCHEDULES (UNAUDITED)

This part of the City’'s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed information as a context for
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary
information discusses about the City’s overall financial health. In contrast to the financial section, the statistical
section information is not subject to independent audit.

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's financial performance and
well being have changed over time:

¢ Net Assets by Component

¢ Changes in Net Assets

e Fund Balance of Governmental Funds

+ Changes in Fund Batance of Governmental Funds

Revenue Capacity
The schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's significant local revenue source, the
property tax:

+ Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

« Property Tax Rates, All Overlapping Governments

+ Principal Property Taxpayers

e Property Tax Levies and Collections

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City’s current levels of
outstanding debt and the City of Concord’s ability to issue additional debt in the future:

Ratio of Qutstanding Debt by Debt

Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt

Computation of Legal Bonded Debt Margin

Sewer Revenue Bonds Coverage

Bond Debt Pledged Revenue Coverage - Tax Allocation Bonds

e & 5 & @

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within
which the City’s financial activities take place:

» Demographic and Economic Statistics

s Principal Employers

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in the
City’s financial report relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs:

e Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) City Government Employees by Function

» Operating Indicators by Function/Program

o Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program

Sources

Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Reports for the relevant year. The City implemented GASB Statement 34 in 2002; Schedules presenting
government-wide information include information beginning in that year.
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Table 2:

Changes in Net Assets

Last Ten Fiscal Years (Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Expenses
Governmental Activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Community & Economic Development
Building, Engineering & Neighborhood Services
Parks & Recreation
Interest on Long Term Debt
Total Governmental Activities Expenses
Business-Type Activities:
Sewer
Golf Course

Total Business-Type Activities Expenses
Total Primary Government Expenses

Program Revenues
Governmental Activities:
Charges for Services:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Community & Economic Development
Building, Engineering & Neighborhood Services
Parks & Recreation
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues
Business-Type Activities:
Charges for Services:
Sewer Wastewater
Golf Course
Capital Grants and Contributions
Total Business-Type Activities Program Revenue
Total Primary Government Program Revenues

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities

Total Primary Government Net Expense

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets
Governmental Activities:
Taxes:
Property Taxes
Sales Taxes
Motor Vehicle In-Lieu
Transient Occupancy Taxes
Business License Taxes
Other Taxes
Grants & Contributions Not Restricted to Specific Programs
Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous Revenues
Transfers
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Land
Extraordinary ltem-Assets Transferred to/Liabilities
assumed by Successor Agency
Total Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities:
Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous Revenues
Transfers
Total Business-Type Activities
Total Primary Government

Change in Net Assets
Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities
Total Primary Government

Note:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
$10,820,036  $11,500,179 $9,622,634 $11,142,712  $13,090,236
30,129,478 32,490,241 36,466,365 37,585,077 39,002,036
28,573,938 29,048,534 34,904,128 34,976,572 35,491,488
3,884,615 5,710,011 5,087,871 4,836,179 5,065,830
5,281,208 5,563,100 5,690,760 7,239,616 9,313,264
13,473,690 14,439,500 6,771,302 7,820,034 8,230,319
7,700,863 5,214,110 6,340,280 5,919,742 5,700,631
99,863,828 103,965,675 104,883,340 109,519,932 115,893,804
15,756,172 16,536,922 17,880,681 18,850,426 20,803,448
1,856,460 1,831,742 1,774,805 1,635,069 1,769,623
17,612,632 18,368,664 19,655,486 20,485,495 22,573,071
$117,476,460 $122,334,339 $124,538,826 $130,005,427 $138,466,875
$499,199 $151,645 $237,121 $1,025,938 $883,778
1,620,643 1,612,896 1,484,683 1,371,870 1,642,445
3,467,007 3,669,880 6,712,375 4,814,755 4,964,185
323,332 1,628,316 1,567,764 4,903,145 4,492,293
2,787,941 2,427,260 2,703,914 2,957,954 2,694,836
2,992,000 2,999,927 3,390,454 2,706,210 3,015,576
7,255,523 7,311,503 6,458,722 6,825,581 8,100,031
6,417,819 9,659,289 4,392,944 14,452,119 7,755,904
25,363,464 29,460,716 26,947,977 39,057,572 33,549,048
14,130,952 14,518,522 14,735,514 17,130,440 15,968,289
1,863,948 1,814,642 1,672,696 1,556,405 1,602,581
311,843 689,253 233,662
15,994,900 16,645,007 16,408,210 19,376,098 17,804,532
$41,358,364  $46,105,723  $43,356,187  $58,433,670  $51,353,580
($74,500,364) ($74,504,959) ($77,935,363) ($70,462,360) ($82,344,756)
(1,617,732) (1,723,657) (3,247,276) (1,109,397) (4,768,539)

($76,118,096)

($76,228,616)

($81,182,639)

($71,571,757)

($87,113,295)

$21,865,693 $22,436,555 $21,710,942 $23,202,025 $28,151,765
27,564,127 27,817,974 28,313,462 27,219,549 28,574,582
7,177,764 5,689,008 9,496,201 9,064,920 9,266,868
1,630,746 1,528,836 1,629,388 1,836,002 2,057,241
2,836,339 2,815574 3,153,959 3,107,600 3,218,553
2,950,503 3,256,347 3,368,778 3,347,905 3,853,558
3,830,034 2,160,336 3,147,879 2,962,518 4,218,014
88,938 55,193 74,071 59,733
(5,203) 9,596 (40,321)
819,435 (1,559,168) 11,994,854
68,758,376 __ 65769410 70854359 __ 69,241,084 __ 91.335.435
445,058 53,790 535,095 1,037,233 1,190,636
5,203 (9,596) 40,321
450,261 44,194 575,416 1,037,233 1,190,636
$60,208,63/ 365,813,613 $71,429,775 _$70,278,317 _ $92,526,071
($5,741,988) ($8,735,540) ($7,081,004) ($1,221,276)  $8,990,679
(1,167.471)  (1.679.463)  (2,671,860) (72,164) _ (3,577,903)
(36,909,459) ($10,415,003) _ (39,752,864) _ ($1,293,440) __ $5,412,776

(a) In 2010, Building, Engineering & Neighborhood Services was merged into Public Works & Engineering; and
Planning & Economic Department was reorganized into Community Development Department.
(b) In 2012, Engineering was reorganized into Community & Economic Development and the Redevelopment Agency was dissolved.
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2008 2009 2010 (a) 2011 2012 (b)

$13,275,497  $12,738,632  $12,443,084  $11,349,674 $13,101,551
42,367,364 45,291,048 43,000,455 43,122,959 43,363,091
36,554,748 36,454,843 32,833,186 37,629,109 32,023,754
6,530,424 10,579,123 20,627,408 15,777,443 10,592,117
12,291,176 6,571,713
9,484,383 9,463,315 9,810,082 7,207,017 6,979,013
5,521,049 5,213,438 5,266,740 3,936,497 3,334,049
126,024,641 126,312,112 123,980,955 119,022,699 _ 109,393,575

24,868,475 18,688,255 21,303,268 21,695,293 23,196,668
1,601,983 1,679,995 1,323,074 1,305,929 1,313,458

26,470,458 20,368,250 22,626,342 23,001,222 24,510,126
$152,495,099  $146,680,362 $146,607,297 $142,023,921 _$133,903,701

$782,744 $966,501 $594,633 $911,046 1,553,733
1,499,727 1,672,348 1,805,170 1,589,312 1,635,124
2,575,986 5,847,684 8,425,897 8,491,639 8,528,881
3,281,902 2,390,462 2,917,141 6,786,730 548,425
777,091 3,363,813
3,287,962 3,492,087 3,332,979 3,068,375 3,019,879
6,188,496 4,715,761 5,519,453 6,071,139 7,926,836
8,768,985 10,512,437 10,573,237 8,570,019 6,586,825

27,162,893 32,961,093 33,168,510 35,488,260 29,799,703

17,915,613 18,296,077 18,423,702 18,238,338 19,359,526
1,635,148 1,422,154 1,326,167 1,250,804 1,382,491
79,419 117,915
19,530,180 19,836,146 19,749,869 19,489,142 20,742,017
$46,693,073  $52,797,239  $52,918,379  $54,977,402 © $50,541,720

($98,861,748) ($93,351,019) ($90,812,445) ($83,534,439) ($79,593,872)
(6,940,278) (532,104)  (2,876,473)  (3,512,080) _ (3,768,109)
($105,802,026) ($93,883,123) ($93,688,018) ($87,046,519)_($83,361,981)

$30,269,864  $29,034,866  $27,916,258  $27,138,018 $19,353,337
27,325,370 24,253,987 23,370,649 24,585,811 33,855,151

9,759,831 9,625,635 8,797,365 8,843,361 8,117,461

2,193,085 1,710,768 1,427,813 1,391,107 1,478,874

3,157,176 3,262,762 3,324,011 3,347,429 3,377,278

3,991,357 4,128,526 4,097,706 4,438,806 4,784,146

5,346,348 2,300,008 842,470 635,145 623,823
53,915 247,697 114,280 33,834
(16,401) 19,296

20,298,845

82,096,946 74,547,848 69,890,552 70,432,807 91,888,915

1,485,065 809,161 913,934 397,390 286,744

50,000 52,450 62,500 38,161 37,500
16,401 (19,296)

1,535,065 878,012 976,434 416,255 324,244

$83,632,011  $75,425,860  $70,866,986  $70,849,062  $92,213,159

($16,764,802) ($18,803,171) ($20,921,893) ($13,101,632)  $12,295,043
(5,405,213) 345908  (1,900,039)  (3,095,825)  ($3,443,865)
($22,170,015) ($18,457,263) ($22,821,932) ($16,197,457) _ $8,851,178
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Table 4: Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years (Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2003 2004 2005(a) 2006(a) 2007
Revenues
Taxes $60,693,494 $61,735,974 $62,108,412 $70,913,489 $78,285,780
Licenses and Permits 2,539,529 3,291,112 3,138,724 4,877,758 3,073,607
Intergovernmental 16,115,511 16,209,022 18,659,169 10,647,688 10,335,065
Charges for Services 5,502,226 6,088,123 6,399,020 7,130,622 7,182,525
Fines, Forfeitures and Penalties 645,723 738,476 717,015 897,435 989,426
Parks and Recreation 2,143,019 2,117,718 2,420,106 2,585,962 2,678,282
Use of Money and Property 5,457,259 3,749,005 4,740,989 5,371,381 5,943,217
Special Assessment Collections 628,420 587,663 99,623 75,021 72,524
Other 687,006 855,196 758,718 713,853 701,526
Total Revenues 94,412,187 95,372,289 99,041,776 103,213,209 109,261,952
Expenditures
Current:
General Government 10,935,855 11,719,382 9,422,828 11,056,922 12,633,576
Public Safety 28,889,785 30,197,506 35,687,725 37,384,952 38,587,496
Public Works 9,327,836 9,400,460 15,292,558 14,830,313 15,508,044
Building, Engineering & Neighborhood Servic 5,349,636 5,441,037 5,716,968 5,009,679 5,028,829
Community & Economic Development 3,740,770 7,081,755 4,749,351 7,357,162 10,046,844
Parks & Recreation 12,196,418 12,936,943 6,682,215 7,428,161 7,828,837
Non-Departmental
Capital Outlay 14,917,505 8,515,838 6,555,700 5,602,918 5,947,842
Debt Service:
Principal Repayment 5,117,000 5,293,000 4,554,000 4,655,000 4,586,000
Interest and Fiscal Charges 6,837,478 8,356,499 3,950,417 5,326,328 5,133,210
Refund to Property Owners 156,691 55,955 41,453 326,836
Total Expenditures 97,468,974 98,998,375 92,653,215 98,978,271 105,300,678
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (3,056,787) (3,626,086) 6,388,561 4,234,938 3,961,274
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In 7,244,083 2,014,711 5,461,790 4,204,776 2,608,732
Transfers (Out) (5,204,465) (1,952,059) (5,526,805) (14,418,255) (6,248,494)
Refunding Bonds Issued 72,310,000
Proceeds from Debt Issuance 1,569,330 30,670 350,000
Proceeds from Sale of Property 886,435 17,294,854
Bond Issuance Premium 407,090
Payments to Refunded Bond Escrow (79,041,386)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 2,926,053 (4,692,314) (34,345) (10,213,479) 14,005,092

Special/Extraordinary ltems
Loss on Sale of Property (1,559,168)
Assets transferred to Housing Successor/
Assets transferred to/liabilities assumed
by the Successor Agency

Total Special/Extraordinary Items (1,559,168)

Net Change in Fund Balances ($130,734) ($8,318,400) $6,354,216 ($7,537,709)  $17,966,366

Debt Service as a Percentage of
Non-Capital Expenditures 14.5% 15.1% 9.9% 10.7% 9.8%

Note:
(a) The City underwent reorganization during 2005, 2006, 2010 and 2012.
(b) The Redevelopment Agency was dissolved during 2012.
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2008 2009 2010 (a) 2011 2012 (a)(b)
$78,204,323  $75,189,694  $72,007,902  $72,687,375  $74,875,127
1,599,886 3,552,003 1,964,480 1,228,356 $1,365,186
8,265,305 12,366,551 15,089,721 19,640,532 11,135,482
6,343,372 7,289,449 6,632,428 6,805,602 4,865,682
1,055,807 1,108,677 1,021,931 946,447 922,745
3,006,184 2,869,639 2,895,408 2,692,712 2,668,759
5,968,313 4,102,165 1,908,565 1,600,983 1,371,958
65,610 67,052 65,201 1,851 11,621
613,023 786,340 805,294 1,014,470 1,176,402
105,121,823 107,331,570 102,390,930 106,618,328 98,392,962
12,678,872 11,984,808 11,997,158 10,528,138 12,407,521
40,285,037 42,843,522 41,359,307 40,415,163 42,205,234
17,060,398 15,956,198 15,237,733 20,508,901 9,942,358
6,408,585 6,298,643
11,385,205 8,142,528 18,282,245 15,627,709 10,001,434
8,745,778 8,806,329 8,721,242 7,364,390 6,440,498
7,822,286 11,589,152 7,997,002 2,550,625 11,755,006
4,852,000 5,024,000 16,878,000 5,745,000 5,427,190
4,952,854 4,860,812 5,226,724 3,700,057 3,875,398
34,431 248,938
114,225,446 115505992 125699411 106,688,921 102,054,639
(9,103,623)  (8,174,422)  (23,308,481) (70,593)  (3,661,677)
3,733,972 5,557,868 16,335,469 16,347,402 16,227,980
(4733,972)  (4,071,296)  (18,444,344)  (16,484,229)  (14,533,190)
95,579 5,073,500 8,384,040

(1,000,000) 1,582,151 2,964,625 8,247,213 1,694,790
(23,338,246)
(23,338,246)
($10,103,623)  ($6,592,271) ($20,343,856)  $8,176,620  ($25,305,133)
9.2% 9.3% 18.8% 9.6% 10.2%
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MuNICIPAL DEBT CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority

Lease Revenue Bonds (Concord Pavilion) Series 1995

a. Summary of Revenues & Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
b.

Principal Amount of Bonds Outstanding

City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority

Lease Revenue Bonds (Concord Avenue Parking Structure) Series 2001

mRT T T@T0 00T

Balance in the Parking Structure Revenue Fund

Balance in the Other Funds and Accounts Held by the City or the Trustee

Principal Amount of Bonds Outstanding

Taxable Sales Transactions

Taxable Sales Transactions by Type of Business

Adopted and Final Budgets for Unrestricted General Fund

Summary of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
City's Pooled Investment Portfolio

General Fund - Tax Revenues by Source

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

Largest Local Secured Property Taxpayers

Tax Levies and Collections

City of Concord

Certificates of Participation (ABAG 41)

SQ ™+ Q0o

Adopted and Final Budgets for Unrestricted General Fund

Summary of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
City’s Pooled Investment Portfolio

General Fund — Tax Revenue by Source

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

Cash and Investments

Principal Amount of Bonds Outstanding

Outstanding Debt and Lease Obligations

Annual Contribution to Public Employees Retirement System

City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority

Certificates of Participation (2004 Wastewater System Improvement Project)

Certificates of Participation (2007 Wastewater System Improvement Project)

cooTo

Ten Largest Users of the Wastewater System
Sewer Rates

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Principal Amount of Bonds Outstanding

(Table 1)
(CAFR, page 59)

(Table 2)
(Table 3)
(Table 4)
(Table 5)
(Table 6)
(Table 7)
(Table 8)

(Table 9)

(CAFR, page 26)
(CAFR, page 116)
(CAFR, page 118)
(CAFR, page 119)

(Table 7)

(Table 8)

(Table 9)

(CAFR, page 26)
(CAFR, page 104)
(CAFR, page 45)
(CAFR, page 59)
(CAFR, page 59)

(CAFR, pages 66 & 68)

(Table 10)

(Table 11)
(CAFR, page 123)
(CAFR, page 59)
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Redevelopment Agency of the City of Concord
(Central Concord Redevelopment Project) Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds Series 2004

a. Historical Taxable Values and Tax Increment Revenues (Table 12)

b. Largest Property Taxpayers by Assessed Value and Revenue (Table 13)

c. Annual Assessed Value Appeals (Table 14)

d. Tax Revenue Callection (CAFR, page 124)
e. Principal Amount of Bonds Outstanding (CAFR, page 59)
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